EDGAR'pro

iy EDGAR Dnlire”

PLUG POWER INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/17/15 for the Period Ending 12/31/14

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

968 ALBANY-SHAKER ROAD

LATHAM, NY 12110

5187827700

0001093691

PLUG

3620 - Electrical Industrial Apparatus
Renewable Energy Equipment & Services
Energy

12/31

Powere d By ED‘GA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2017, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

Use these links to rapidly review the document
TABLE OF CONTENTS
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
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E3) ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT
For the transition period from to
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Delaware 22-3672377
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(518) 782-7700
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Securities registered pursuant to SectRb) of the Act:
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Common Stock, par value $.01 per st The NASDAQ Capital Marke
Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Prefergeock,
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Securities registered pursuant to SectR(g) of the ActNone
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(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Y& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oedtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of tthapter) during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to submit and post such filés}. No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant's knowdedgdefinitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Ill of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & non-accelerated filer, or a smaller repgrtin
company. See the definitions of "large acceleréited" "accelerated filer," "non-accelerated fileand "smaller reporting company" in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filei! Accelerated filer Non-accelerated fileil Smaller reporting compani

(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan'

Indicate by check mark whether the regrgtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-thefExchange Act). Yefl No [

The aggregate market value of the votimgj @on-voting common equity of the registrant Hefchon-affiliates of the registrant on
June 30, 2014 was $777,048,639.
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PART |
Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our accompanying Consolidated Financiat8ments and Notes thereto
included within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.aladition to historical information, this Annual &t on Form 10-K and the following
discussion contain statements that are not hisébfigcts and are considered forward-looking wittiie meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act and Section 21E of the ExchangeThetse forward-looking statements contain projexiof our future results of operations or
of our financial position or state other forwardeking information. In some cases you can identiésé statements by forward-looking words
such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "continliéestimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "should'will," "would," "plan," "projected" or the
negative of such words or other similar words orgstes. We believe that it is important to commueicair future expectations to our
investors. However, there may be events in theduhat we are not able to accurately predict ontol and that may cause our actual results
to differ materially from the expectations we dédsein our forward-looking statements. Investors aautioned not to unduly rely on forward-
looking statements because they involve risks agdrtainties, and actual results may differ mathlyifrom those discussed as a result of
various factors, including, but not limited to: thiek that we continue to incur losses and mightemechieve or maintain profitability; the risk
that we will need to raise additional capital tmfliour operations and such capital may not be add to us; the risk that our lack of
extensive experience in manufacturing and markeinogucts may impact our ability to manufacture anarket products on a profitable and
large-scale commercial basis; the risk that unilers will not ship, be installed and/or convertedévenue, in whole or in part; the risk that a
loss of one or more of our major customers coufditein a material adverse effect on our finan@ahdition; the risk that a sale of a
significant number of shares of stock could deptieesnarket price of our common stock; the risk tlegative publicity related to our busin
or stock could result in a negative impact on aick value and profitability; the risk of potentiakses related to any product liability claims
or contract disputes; the risk of loss related toiaability to maintain an effective system of intd controls or key personnel; the risks related
to the use of flammable fuels in our products;ribk that pending orders may not convert to purehaslers, in whole or in part; the cost and
timing of developing, marketing and selling our gwots and our ability to raise the necessary cdpddund such costs; the ability to achieve
the forecasted gross margin on the sale of our pets] the risk that our actual net cash used fograging expenses may exceed the projectec
net cash used for operating expenses; the costaaithbility of fuel and fueling infrastructuresrfour products; market acceptance of our
products and services; our ability to establish andintain relationships with third parties with pect to product development, manufactur
distribution and servicing and the supply of kegdarct components; the cost and availability of comgnts and parts for our products; our
ability to develop commercially viable productsy ability to reduce product and manufacturing costsr ability to successfully expand our
product lines; our ability to successfully expanternationally; our ability to improve system rddisity for our products; competitive factor
such as price competition and competition from otteditional and alternative energy companies; @lnility to protect our intellectual
property; the cost of complying with current antlfie federal, state and international governmemggulations; risks associated with poten
future acquisitions; the volatility of our stockige; and other risks and uncertainties discussedenitem |/—Risk Factors. Readers should
not place undue reliance on our forward-lookingtstaents. These forwafdeking statements speak only as of the date oohathe statemer
were made and are not guarantees of future perfaceaExcept as may be required by applicable lasvda not undertake or intend to upd
any forward-looking statements after the date @&f Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 1. Business
Background

Plug Power Inc., or the Company, is a legdirovider of alternative energy technology foclisa the design, development,
commercialization and manufacture of hydrogen &edll systems used primarily for the industrial od&d (forklift or material handling) mark
and the stationary power market.

We are focused on proton exchange memboarigEM, fuel cell and fuel processing technologfasl cell/battery hybrid technologies,
and associated hydrogen storage and dispensirgginfcture from which multiple products are avdédald fuel cell is an electrochemical
device that combines hydrogen and oxygen to prodlemricity and heat without combustion. Hydrogederived from hydrocarbon fuels
such as liquid petroleum gas, or LPG, natural gaspane, methanol, ethanol, gasoline or biofuejglrbigen can also be obtained from the
electrolysis of water, or produced on-site at comsulocations through a process known as reformaktug Power develops complete
hydrogen delivery, storage and refueling solutifmmsustomer locations.

We sell and continue to develop fuel cetiquct solutions to replace lead-acid batteriematerial handling vehicles and industrial trucks
for some of North America's largest distributiomananufacturing businesses. We are focusing oartsfon material handling applications
(forklifts) at multi-shift high volume manufactugrand high throughput distribution sites where pnaducts and services provide a unique
combination of productivity, flexibility and envinmental benefits. Our current product line includgsnDrive, our hydrogen fueled PEM fuel
cell system providing power to material handlinfpietes; GenFuel, our hydrogen fueling delivery syst GenCare, our ongoing maintenance
program for both the GenDrive fuel cells and Getpueducts; GenKey, our turn-key solution coupliogether GenDrive, GenFuel and
GenCare, offering complete simplicity to custonteassitioning their material handling vehicles telf cell power; and ReliOn, our stationary
fuel cell solution providing scalable, modular PHEi| cell power to support the backup and grid-swppower requirements of the
telecommunications, transportation, and utilitytsex

We sell our products worldwide, with a paim focus on North America, through our direct proidsales force, leveraging relationships
with original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, #melr dealer networks. We are party to a jointtuesbased in France with Axane, S.A.
under the name HyPulsion, to develop and sell lyehduel cell systems for the European materiattiag market. We sell to businesses and
government agencies.

We were organized in the State of Delawegrdune 27, 1997.

Unless the context indicates otherwise j¢nms "Company," "Plug Power,
and its subsidiaries.

we," "our" or "us$ used herein refers to Plug Power Inc.

Business Strategy

We are committed to developing effectivepreomical and reliable fuel cell related produststems and services for businesses and
government agencies. Building on our substantiall ¢ell application and product integration expecie, we are focused on generating strong
relationships with customers who value increasédhiéity, productivity, energy security and a sais@able future.

Our business strategy leverages our urfigglecell application and integration knowledgedentify early adopter markets for which we
can design and develop innovative systems andmestsolutions that provide superior value, easasefand environmental design.

We have made significant progress in patiegy the material handling market, supported tghothe deployment of over 6,500 GenDrive
units into commercial applications. We believe vaedndeveloped reliable products which allow the emgtomers to eliminate incumbent
power sources from
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their operations, and realize their sustainabdijectives through clean energy alternatives. ttitaah, we have deployed our GenKey
hydrogen and fuel cell solution to multiple custorsites.

Our primary strategy is to focus our resesron the material handling market. Through eistadd customer relationships, Plug Power
proven itself as a trusted partner with a relidbéd cell solution. Our strategy also includes fillowing objectives: decrease product costs by
leveraging the supply chain, lower manufacturingtepgimprove system reliability, expand our saletsvork to effectively reach more of our
targeted customers and provide customers with gighlity products, service and post-sales suppqeigsnce.

Our longer-term objectives are to delivesr@omic, social, and environmental benefits in geofireliable, clean, cost-effective fuel cell
solutions and, ultimately, sustainability.

We believe continued investment in researah development is critical to the developmenteamitancement of innovative products,
technologies and services. In addition to evolwngdirect hydrogen fueled systems, we continugafutalize on our investment and expertise
in power electronics, controls, and software design

We continue to develop and monitor futurel ftell solutions that align with our evolving prect roadmap. By leveraging our current
GenDrive architecture, Plug Power is evaluatingeelpt markets such as transport refrigeration ¢fRdJ), ground support equipment (GSE)
and range extenders.

Business Organization

We manage our business as a single reg@égment, emphasizing shared learning across sardapplications and common
supplier/vendor relationships.

Products

We sell and continue to develop hydrogehfael cell product solutions to replace lead-dmtteries in material handling vehicles and
industrial trucks for some of North America's lasgdistribution and manufacturing businesses. Véd@ausing our efforts on material
handling applications (forklifts) at multi-shiftdt volume manufacturing and high throughput distiin sites where our products and service
provide a unique combination of productivity, fleiity and environmental benefits. Additionally, weanufacture and sell fuel cell products to
replace batteries and diesel generators in stagidveeckup power applications. These products puabaable with telecommunications,
transportation and utility customers as a robediable and sustainable power solution. Our curpeotiucts and services include:

GenKey. Introduced in January 2014, GenKey is our-key solution offering complete simplicity to custers transitioning their
material handling vehicles to fuel cell power. Gegkorovides a "one-stop shopping" option for owstomers, combining GenDrive
next-generation fuel cells with our GenFuel and Gen@aoducts, described more fully below. Our GenKegrifig allows us to hanc
power, fueling, and service for our customers, Whicturn allows the customers to focus on thesibess and productivity. Financing
options are available to GenKey customers.

GenDrive: GenDrive is our primary product line, a hydeagueled PEM fuel cell system providing power tatemial handling
vehicles.

GenFuel: GenFuel is our hydrogen fueling delivery systelesigned to allow customers to easily refuel®@enDrive units for
maximum productivity.

GenCare: GenCare is our ongoing maintenance prograrbdtr the GenDrive fuel cells and GenFuel produgenCare includes
advanced system monitoring, preventive maintengrerégdic system enhancements, parts inventory, s rapid-response onsite
service by trained GenCare technicians.
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ReliOn: ReliOn is our stationary fuel cell solutioropiding scalable, modular PEM fuel cell power t@gart the backup and grid-
support power requirements of the telecommunicafitlnsportation, and utility sectors.

Product Support & Services

To promote fuel cell adoption and maintadst-sale customer satisfaction, we offer a rafigexvice and support options through service
and maintenance contracts. Additionally, customeag waive our service option, and choose to setthieg systems independently.

Markets/Geography & Order Status

The Company's products and services prausmtly serve the North American material handlirgyket, and primarily support large fleet,
multi-shift operations in high-volume manufacturiagd high-throughput distribution centers. Basedem@nt market experience, it appears
there may be some seasonality to sales stemmingvasied customer appropriation cycles; howeverséhmarket factors will continue to
evolve and the Company's insight to these trensmprove with continued commercial success anteti

Orders for the Company's products and sesvin 2014 approximated $151.4 million comparetal orders in 2013 of $44.0 million.
The Company's backlog as of December 31, 2014 parogimately $133.4 million, compared to the Compsaacklog as of December 31,
2013 of approximately $50.0 million. The Comparésklog at any given time is comprised of produgyglrogen installations, maintenance
services, and hydrogen molecule deliveries. Theipe&lements of the backlog will vary in termstofing of delivery and can vary between
90 days to 10 years, with products and hydrogetaliations being delivered near term and mainteaam®evices and hydrogen molecule
deliveries being more long term. Historically, shignts made against these orders generally oconebetninety days and twenty-four months
from the date of acceptance of the order.

In the year ended December 31, 2014, tvatocners comprised 37.2% of our total consolidagegmues, with M&T Bank and Kroger
representing 24.1% and 13.1% of total consolidede@dnues, respectively. Sales to M&T Bank durinfiffepresent sale-leaseback
transactions that stem from operating leases taclisfomers such as Walmart and Volkswagen. A losiedine in business with one or more
of these customers could have an adverse impamtiobusiness, financial condition and results afragions.

We assemble our products at our manufagjuecilities in Latham, New York and Spokane, Wagton, and provide our services and
installations at customer locations. Currently, $hpply and manufacture of varied critical compdseised in our products and services are
performed by sole-sourced third-party vendors éthS., Canada and China.

Distribution, Marketing and Strategic Relationships

We have developed strategic relationshiiis well-established companies in key areas inclgdlistribution, service, marketing, supply,
technology development and product developments®#leour products worldwide, with a primary focusorth America, through our direct
product sales force, original equipment manufacsyer OEMs, and their dealer networks. Additiopalle are party to a joint venture base
France with Axane, S.A. under the name HyPulsiomevelop and sell hydrogen fuel cell systemsHerEuropean material handling market.

Competition

We are confronted by aggressive competiticall areas of our business. The markets we addor motive power are characterized by
presence of well-established battery and combustion
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generator products in addition to competing fudl@@mpanies. Over the past several years, thesdban price competition in these markets.
In addition to overall pricing, the principal contjpiee factors in the markets in which we operatelude product features, including size and
weight, relative price and performance, productigguand reliability, design innovation, marketiagd distribution capability, service and
support and corporate reputation.

In the material handling market, we beliewe GenDrive products have an advantage overdeatlbatteries for customers who run high-
throughput distribution centers with multi-shiftexations by offering increased productivity withvier operational costs. However, we expect
competition in this space to intensify as compeditttempt to imitate our approach with their ovfieiongs. Some of these current and
potential competitors have substantial resourcdsway be able to provide such products and seraicktsle or no profit or even at a loss to
compete with our offerings.

Intellectual Property

We believe that neither we nor our compegican achieve a significant proprietary positiorthe basic technologies currently used in
PEM fuel cell systems. However, we believe theglesind integration of our system and system compsnas well as some of the low-cost
manufacturing processes that we have developedhtaitectual property that can be protected. @teliectual property portfolio covers amc
other things: fuel cell components that reduce rfanturing part count; fuel cell system designs tbat themselves to mass manufacturing;
improvements to fuel cell system efficiency, relliipand system life; and control strategies, sashadded safety protections and operation
under extreme conditions. In general, our emplogeegarty to agreements providing that all invami whether patented or not, made or
conceived while being our employee, which are egldb or result from work or research that we genfavill remain our sole and exclusive

property.

We have a total of 145 issued patents ntlyractive with the USPTO. At the close of 2014 kad 5 U.S. patent applications pending.
Additionally, we have six trademarks registerechviite USPTO and three trademark applications pgndin

As a part of the formation of our HyPulsjomt venture, we and HyPulsion entered into eebse Agreement under which we license to
HyPulsion, on a royalty-free basis, certain intil&al property in the field of integrated hydrodaal cell systems for the material handling
market. The license is exclusive as to the teigsoof Albania, Austria, Belgium, Bosnia and Heraega, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech
Republic, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Gregduagary, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Liechtenstdinxembourg, Republic of Macedonia,
Malta, Montenegro, the Netherlands, Norway, Pol&uattugal, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia, Sloveniaji@wveden, Switzerland and the
United Kingdom (the "Territory"). If the Companylisdts entire equity interest in HyPulsion, thegihse becomes non-exclusive one year afte
such sale. Further, the license becomes non-exelusind the Company may terminate the license, apgrbankruptcy or dissolution of
HyPulsion. Under the License Agreement, the Compaongives a royalty-free license to certain intglial property of HyPulsion in the field
of integrated hydrogen fuel cell systems for theamal handling market outside of the Territory.

Government Regulation

Our products and their installations angject to oversight and regulation at the statelaadl level in accordance with state and local
statutes and ordinances relating to, among otbaitling codes, fire codes, public safety, eleelrend gas pipeline connections and hydroget
siting. The level of regulation may depend, in papon where a system is located.

In addition, product safety standards Haeen established by the American National Standasdigute, or ANSI, covering the overall fi
cell system. The class 1, 2 and 3 GenDrive prodarets
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designed with the intent of meeting the requiremeftJL 2267 "Fuel Cell Power Systems for Instatiatin Industrial Electric Trucks" and
NFPA 505 "Fire Safety Standard for Powered Indakfriucks". The hydrogen tanks used in these systaawe been either certified
ANSI/CSA NGV2-2007 "Compressed Natural Gas Vehikalel Containers" or ISO/TS 15869 "Gaseous hydregehhydrogen blends—Land
vehicle fuel tanks". We will continue to design @enDrive products to meet ANSI and/or other stagglan 2015. We certified several moc
of Class 1, 2 and 3 GenDrive products to the reguémts of the CE mark with guidance from a Europesified body. The hydrogen tanks
used in these systems are certified to the Preg&urment Directive by a European notified body.

The GenFuel hydrogen storage and dispemsiducts are designed with the intent of meetirgrequirements of NFPA 2 "Hydrogen
Technologies Code".

Other than these requirements, at this timelo not know what additional requirements, if,aach jurisdiction will impose on our
products or their installation. We also do not krtbe extent to which any new regulations may imjpactability to distribute, install and
service our products. As we continue distributing systems to our target markets, the federak siatal or foreign government entities may
seek to impose regulations or competitors may seekluence regulations through lobbying efforts.

Raw Materials

Most components essential to our businesgenerally available from multiple sources. Weently obtain certain components
including, but not limited to, fuel cell stack ma#ds, and other hydrogen components from singlénuted sources. We are, however,
evaluating and testing alternate component sources.

We are party to a supply agreement withaBalPower Systems, or Ballard, for fuel cell seakich provides for a term through
December 31, 2017. Under this agreement, we arebiigiated to purchase fuel cell stacks solely fidatiard and may purchase from alterr
suppliers.

We believe there are a few component sappiind manufacturing vendors whose loss to usldmue a material adverse effect upon ou
business and financial condition. Such vendoraioelBallard and Air Squared, Inc. We are mitigatimgse potential risks by introducing
alternate system architectures which we expectalldwv us to diversify our supply chain with mulggfuel cell stack and air supply compon
vendors. We are also working closely with thesedees and other key suppliers on coordinated proiticiduction plans, strategic
inventories, and internal and external manufactusichedules and levels.

Research and Development

Because the fuel cell industry is charazter by its early state of adoption, our abilitycmpete successfully is heavily dependent upon
our ability to ensure a continual and timely flolwcompetitive products, services, and technolotpabe marketplace. We continue to develop
new products and technologies and to enhancemxigtbducts in the areas of cost, size, weight,iastipporting service solutions in order to
drive commercialization.

We may expand the range of our productrioffis and intellectual property through licensimglfr acquisition of third-party business anc
technology. Our research and development expetsedds6.5 million, $3.1 million and $5.4 million R014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
also had cost of research and development comgeenhue of $3.2 million, $2.5 million and $2.8 naifl in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
These expenses represent the cost of researcteaalbpment programs that are partially funded uedst reimbursement research and
development arrangements with third parties.
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Employees
As of December 31, 2014, we had 326 emgsymcluding 59 temporary employees.
Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Please refer to our Geographic Informaiimiuded in our Consolidated Financial Statementsreotes thereto included in Part 11, Item 8:
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ofiim 10-K.

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, QuarterlpRrts on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-t(Kamendments to those reports filed
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(dhefExchange Act are available free of charge,rdatien an investor's own internet access
charges, on the Company's website with an intexdétess of www.plugpower.com as soon as reasopadtyicable after the Company
electronically files such material with, or furnéshit to the Securities and Exchange Commissiol€jSEhe information contained on our
website is not included as a part of, or incorpeatdty reference into, this Annual Report on ForrK1@he public may read and copy any
materials the Company files with the SEC at the 'SEEQblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E. Hiligton, DC 20549. The public may
also obtain information on the operation of the lRuReference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-%B30. The SEC also maintains an
internet site that contains reports, proxy andrmigtion statements, and other information regardiagers that file electronically with the Sl
The SEC's website address is http://www.sec.gov.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following risk factors should be coresied carefully in addition to the other informatiorthis Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
occurrence of any of the following material riskaitd harm our business and future results of ojersiand could result in the trading price of
our common stock declining and a partial or congpless of your investment. These risks are nobtitg ones that we face. Additional risks
not presently known to us or that we currently adeisimmaterial may also impair our business openatand trading price of our common
stock. Except as mentioned under "Quantitative@unadlitative Disclosure About Market Risk" and exickp the historical information
contained herein, the discussion contained inAhisual Report on Form 10-K contains "forward-loakistatements," within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 2 the Exchange Act, that involve risks and uncettes. Please refer to the section entitled
"Forward-Looking Statements."

A robust market for our products and services magver develop or may take longer to develop thanawgcipate.

We believe we have identified viable maskfer our products, however our products represergrging technologies, and we cannot
assure that our targeted customers will purchasm thf a sizable market fails to develop or devslomre slowly than we anticipate, we may
be unable to recover the losses we will have imtlito develop our products and may be unable teeelprofitability. The development of a
sizable market for our products may be impactethbpy factors which are out of our control, incluglithe cost competitiveness of our
products; the future costs of natural gas, hydragehother fuels expected to be used by our predoastomer reluctance to try a new prod
customer perceptions of our products' safety; guy requirements; barriers to entry created hstiery energy providers; and the emergence
of newer, more competitive technologies and prasluct
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Our products and services face intense competitéon we may be unable to compete successfully.

The markets for energy products are intgrsempetitive. Some of our competitors in the faell sector and in incumbent technologies
are much larger than we are and may have the manufsg, marketing and sales capabilities to coneplesearch, development and
commercialization of profitable, commercially viaelproducts more quickly and effectively than we.cdmere are many companies engaged il
all areas of traditional and alternative energyegation in the United States, Canada and abroaliidimg, among others, major electric, ail,
chemical, natural gas, battery, generator and afie®i electronics firms, as well as universitiesearch institutions and foreign government-
sponsored companies. These firms are engagedns fof power generation such as solar and wind paweiprocating engines and micro
turbines, advanced battery technologies, genesatsr fast charged technologies and other typsbé€ell technologies. Technological
advances in alternative energy products, battestesys or other fuel cell technologies may makepooducts less attractive or render them
obsolete.

We depend on only a few customers for the majoatyour revenues and the loss of any one or mordtafse customers, or a significant lo:
reduction or rescheduling of orders from any of the customers, would have a material adverse eféecour business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

We sell most of our products to a small banof customers, and while we are continually septo expand our customer base, we ex
this will continue for the next several years. Agde@mber 31, 2014, four customers comprise apprdglyné9.9% of the total accounts
receivable balance, with each customer individuadfyresenting 30.2%, 16.0%, 13.4% and 10.3% of éatzounts receivable, respectively. Fol
the year ended December 31, 2014, contracts wihctigtomers comprised 37.2% of total consolidagednues, with each customer
individually representing 24.1% and 13.1% of tatahsolidated revenues, respectively. Any declinausiness with these customers could
have an adverse impact on our business, financraliton and results of operations. Our future sgsds dependent upon the continued
purchases of our products by a small number obousts. Any fluctuations in demand from such custsnoe other customers may negatively
impact our business, financial condition and resoftoperations. If we are unable to broaden ostatner base and expand relationships with
potential customers, our business will continubédmpacted by unanticipated demand fluctuatiorestdwour dependence on a small number
of customers. Unanticipated demand fluctuationshzue a negative impact on our revenues, busifirasgcial condition, results of operations
and cash flows. In addition, our dependence onallsamber of major customers exposes us to nunsesther risks, including: a slowdown
delay in a customer's deployment of our productaccsignificantly reduce demand for our producésjuctions in a single customer's forecast
and demand could result in excess inventoriesgtinent or future economic conditions could negayivaffect one or more of our major
customers and cause them to significantly reduegadions, or file for bankruptcy; consolidationoofstomers can reduce demand as well as
increase pricing pressure on our products duect@ased purchasing leverage; each of our custdmasrsignificant purchasing leverage over
us to require changes in sales terms includingrnj@ayment terms and product delivery schedaled;concentration of accounts receivable
credit risk, which could have a material adverdeatfon our business, financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows if one of our
major customers declared bankruptcy or delayed paywof their receivables.

Unless we lower our product costs and improve relidy, our product sales could be adversely affedtt

The actual cost of our product solutionsften higher than many established competing @clgies. The primary current value
proposition for our customers stems from produtstigiains in using our solutions. Longer term, giesolving market dynamics and potential
changes in alternative energy tax credits, if weelarable to successfully develop future produasdhe competitive with competing
technologies in terms of price, reliability and d@wity, customers may not buy our products.
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The profitability of our products depends largetyroaterial and manufacturing costs and the mankes pf hydrogen. We cannot guarantee
that we will be able to lower these costs to thveleto assure market acceptance in conjunctiom ettier critical customer criteria in
performance and reliability.

Delays in our product development could have a migleimpact on the profitable commercialization afur products.

If we experience delays in meeting our dtgw@ent goals, our products exhibit technical desfear if we are unable to meet cost or
performance goals, including power output, usefaldnd reliability, the profitable commercializani of our products will be delayed. In this
event, potential purchasers of our products mapsaalternative technologies and any delays cdldd @otential competitors to gain market
advantages. We cannot assure that we will sucdssfaet our commercialization schedule in the fatu

Our product sales and performance depends on thailability of hydrogen and our lack of control ovesr limited availability of such fuel
may adversely impact our sales and product deploytne

Our products and services depend largelthermvailability of hydrogen gas. We are dependeon hydrogen suppliers for success with
the profitable commercialization of our productsl @ervices. Although we will continue to work whiidrogen suppliers to mutually agree on
terms for our customers, including, but not limitedprice of the hydrogen molecules, liquid hydrmghydrogen infrastructure and service
costs, to the benefit of our product value propasjtultimately we have no control over such thpatties. If these fuels are not readily avail:
or if their prices are such that energy producedunyproducts costs more than energy provided bgratources, then our products could be
less attractive to potential users and our produatse proposition could be negatively affectédhyidrogen suppliers elect not to participate in
the material handling market, there may be an fitsefnt supply of hydrogen for this market that wboegatively affect our sales and
deployment of our products and services.

Our purchase orders may not ship, be commissionethetalled, or convert to revenue, and our pendingders may not convert to purchase
orders, which may have a material adverse effectoam revenue and cash flow.

Some of the orders we accept from customegpgire certain conditions or contingencies taatisfied prior to shipment or prior to
commissioning or installation, some of which arésale of our control. Historically, shipments madginst these orders have generally
occurred between ninety days and twenty-four mofrtm the date of acceptance of the order. Ordarthe Company's products and services
in 2014 approximated $151.4 million compared taltotders in 2013 of $44.0 million. The CompanysHtog as of December 31, 2014 was
approximately $133.4 million, compared to the Comymbacklog as of December 31, 2013 of approxiip&e0.0 million. The time periods
from receipt of an order to shipment date and itatan vary widely and are determined by a numiifefiactors, including the terms of the
customer contract and the customer's deployment plaere may also be product redesign or modifcatequirements that must be satisfied
prior to shipment of units under certain of oureggnents. If the redesigns or modifications arecootpleted, some or all of our orders may no
ship or convert to revenue. We also have publi@dgussed anticipated, pending orders with prospectistomers; however, those prospective
customers may require certain conditions or coetirnges to be satisfied prior to issuing a purclmder to us, some of which are outside of
control. Such conditions or contingencies that inayequired to be satisfied before we receive alasge order may include, but are not lim
to, successful product demonstrations or fields¢ri@ome conditions or contingencies that are botiocontrol may include, but are not limit
to, government tax policy, government funding peasgs, and government incentive programs. Additignatbme conditions and contingencies
may extend for several years. We may have to
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compensate customers, by either reimbursemengitfiog portions of associated revenue, or othehotg depending on the terms of the
customer contract, based on the failure on anhiedd conditions or contingencies. This could havadverse impact on our revenue and cast
flow.

We do not have extensive experience in manufactgrour products and, as a result, may be unable tistain a profitable commercial
market for our new and existing products.

From 1997 to 2008, we focused primarilyresearch and development of fuel cell systemshdnatter half of 2008, we shifted our focus
to viable commercialization of our fuel cell prodaidn 2014, we launched a turnkey concept whetebyCompany provides the fuel cells,
hydrogen storage and distribution, ongoing senacel facilitates delivery of the hydrogen. Thisdater solution has been the primary impetus
in the Company's recent success and growing prospafile we have been manufacturing our productsnall quantities for several years,
we do not have extensive experience in mass-matowiiag and marketing our products and services d@/aot know whether we will be able
to develop efficient, low-cost manufacturing cafliibs and processes that will enable us to manufa®ur products in commercial quantities
while meeting the quality, price, engineering, dasiand production standards required to profitatdyket our products. If we are unable to
develop the sustainable manufacturing competenaisspport the commercial market for our produttis,failure would have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, finbommalition and results of operations.

We may be unable to establish or maintain relatibiss with third parties for certain aspects of camtied product development,
manufacturing, distribution and servicing and theupply of key components for our products.

We may need to maintain and may need terémio additional strategic relationships in orttecomplete our current product developn
and commercialization plans. We may also requirtnpes to assist in the sale, servicing and suppgomponents for our current products anc
anticipated products, which are in developmenudfare unable to identify, enter into, and mainsaitisfactory agreements with potential
partners, including those relating to the suppistridbution, service and support of our currentdarcts and anticipated products, we may not b
able to complete our product development and comiaderation plans on schedule or at all. We may alsed to scale back these plans in the
absence of needed partners, which could adverffelst aur future prospects for development and cemuialization of future products. In
addition, any arrangement with a strategic panmay require us to issue a significant amount oftgecurities to the partner, provide the
partner with representation on our board of dinectmd/or commit significant financial resource$uiod our product development efforts in
exchange for their assistance or the contributiomstof intellectual property. Any such issuanceapdity securities would reduce the
percentage ownership of our then current stockimsld&hile we have entered into relationships witppgiers of some key components for our
products, we do not know when or whether we witise supply relationships for all required compdsemd subsystems for our products, or
whether such relationships will be on terms thdkt aliow us to achieve our objectives. Our busingssspects, results of operations and
financial condition could be harmed if we fail tecsire relationships with entities which can developupply the required components for our
products and provide the required distribution sedvicing support. Additionally, the agreementsagaing our current relationships allow for
termination by our partners under certain circumsta, some of which are beyond our control. If @aihgur current strategic partners were to
terminate any of its agreements with us, thereccbala material adverse impact on the continuedldpment and profitable
commercialization of our products and the operatibour business, financial condition, results péations and prospects.
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Failure of our prospective customer demonstratioosuld negatively impact demand for our products.

We conduct demonstrations with a numbeyusfprospective customers, and we plan to condiditianal demonstrations for prospective
customers as required in the future. We may eneoymmbblems and delays during these demonstratisressnumber of reasons, including the
failure of our technology or the technology of thparties, as well as our failure to maintain agvise our products properly. Many of these
potential problems and delays are beyond our cbm§ry problem or perceived problem with our dentositsons with these prospective
customers could materially harm our reputation iamphir market acceptance of, and demand for, conlymts.

We may enter into contracts for products that havet yet been developed or produced, which may giveh customers the right to termine
their agreements with us.

Periodically, we may enter into contractthwour customers for certain products that havebeen developed or produced. There can be
no assurance that we will complete the developroktitese products and meet the specifications reduo fulfill customer agreements and
deliver products on schedule. Pursuant to sucteatgats, the customers would have the right to gdeoubtice to us if, in their good faith
judgment, we have materially deviated from sucleagrents. Should a customer provide such noticewarnchnnot mutually agree tc
modification to the agreement, then the customer Inaae the right to terminate the agreement, whakid adversely affect our future
business.

We may never complete the research and developrokoertain commercially viable products, which magversely affect our revenue,
profitability and result in possible warranty claim

Other than our current products, which wkevye to be commercially viable at this time, vweertbt know when or whether we will
successfully complete research and developmerthef commercially viable products that could béi@al to our future. If we are unable to
develop additional commercially viable products,mway not be able to generate sufficient revenumtimme profitable. The profitable
commercialization of our products depends on ouitykbo reduce the costs of our components andggstiems, and we cannot assure you tha
we will be able to sufficiently reduce these cobisaddition, the profitable commercialization afrgproducts requires achievement and
verification of their overall reliability, efficiety and safety targets, and we cannot assure yowthwill be able to develop, acquire or license
the technology necessary to achieve these talyetsnust complete additional research and developtodiil our product portfolios and
deliver enhanced functionality and reliability irder to manufacture additional commercially viapteducts in commercial quantities. In
addition, while we are conducting tests to prettietoverall life of our products, we may not hawe our products over their projected useful
life prior to large-scale commercialization. Asesult, we cannot be sure that our products witldadong as predicted, resulting in possible
warranty claims and commercial failures.

We must keep up with rapid technological changerémain competitive in a rapidly evolving industry.

Our market is characterized by rapid tedbgioal change and evolving industry standards. f0wre success will depend on our ability to
adapt quickly to rapidly changing technologiesatiapt our services and products to evolving ingustandards and to improve the
performance and reliability of our services andduiets. To achieve market acceptance for our predua must effectively anticipate and o
products that meet changing customer demandsiinedytmanner. If we fail to develop products thatisfy customer preferences in a timely
and cost-effective manner, our ability to renew comtracts with existing customers and our abtlitgreate or increase demand for our
products will be harmed.
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The reduction or elimination of government subsidiand economic incentives for alternative energgheologies could reduce demand for
our products, lead to a reduction in our revenues)d adversely impact our operating results.

We believe that the netarm growth of alternative energy technologiesfisaed by the availability and size of governmand economi
incentives. Many of these government incentivesrexphase out over time, exhaust the allocatedifun or require renewal by the applicable
authority. In addition, these incentive programsldde reduced or discontinued for other reasoosekample, the investment tax credit is
currently scheduled to expire on December 31, 20h6.reduction, elimination, or expiration of tme@stment tax credit or other government
subsidies and economic incentives may result irditmenished economic competitiveness of our proslitwtour customers and could materi
and adversely affect the growth of alternative gnéechnologies, including our products, as welbasfuture operating results

The loss of one or more of our key supply partnersany material change in their product costs, argaluct availability could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We have certain key suppliers, such asaBhthnd Air Squared, that we rely on for criticairponents in our products and there are
numerous other components for our products thas@eesourced. A supplier's failure to develop sumgply components in a timely manner or
at all, or to develop or supply components thattroee quality, quantity or cost requirements, or imability to obtain substitute sources of
these components on a timely basis or on termgtaigle to us, could harm our ability to manufactowe products. In addition, to the extent
that our supply partners use technology or manufagf processes that are proprietary, we may bblara obtain comparable components
from alternative sources.

In addition, commaodity prices and supplyelis affect our costs. For example, platinum igw katerial in our PEM fuel cells. Platinum is
a scarce natural resource and we are dependentaugdficient supply of this commodity. Any shoreagcould adversely affect our ability to
produce commercially viable fuel cell systems aigdificantly raise our cost of producing our fuellcsystems. While we do not anticipate
significant near or long-term shortages in the $uppplatinum, a shortage could adversely affaat ability to produce commercially viable
PEM fuel cells or raise our cost of producing spobducts.

Certain component quality issues have resulted @fjustments to our warranty reserves, which negalyvienpacted our results and delayed
our new order momentum, and unanticipated futurequtuct reliability and quality issues could impaituo ability to service long term
warranty and maintenance contracts profitably.

In previous years, isolated quality isshiage arisen with respect to certain componentsiitain products that are currently being used at
customer sites. The product and service revenugamis we entered into generally provide a oneato-year product warranty to customers
from date of installation. We have had to retrtifé units subject to component quality issues vétilacement components that will improve
the reliability of our products for those customét& had estimated the costs of satisfying thed@iadal warranty claims and recorded a net
reserve adjustment of $2.9 million during the yeraded December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 28&de tvas approximately $590,000 of
this reserve remaining in the product warranty mesé the consolidated balance sheet specifibded issues. However, if any unanticipated
additional quality issues or warranty claims aredyditional material charges may be incurred inftigre. We continue to work with our
vendors on these component issues to recover chiaigen and improve quality and reliability of camnpnts to prevent a reoccurrence of the
isolated quality issues we have experienced.

In addition, from time to time the Compagperiences other unexpected design or produabipeaince issues. The Company makes
significant investment in the continued improvemeinbur
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products and maintains appropriate warranty reseioreknown and unexpected issues; however, unknmoalfunctions or design defects co
result in unexpected material liabilities and coattVersely affect our business, financial condijti@sults of operations and prospects. In
addition, a well-publicized actual or perceivedlpeon could adversely affect the market's percepsfoour products resulting in a decline in
demand for our products and could divert the aitarif our management, which may materially andeaskely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

The risk of product liability claims andsasiated adverse publicity is inherent in the depelent, manufacturing, marketing and sale of
fuel cell products, including products fueled bydhggen, a flammable gas. Any liability for damagesulting from malfunctions or design
defects could be substantial and could materialiyeesely affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and prospects. In
addition, a well-publicized actual or perceivedlpeon could adversely affect the market's percepsfoour products resulting in a decline in
demand for our products and could divert the aitarif our management, which may materially andeaskely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Our future plans could be harmed if we are unable attract or retain key personnel.

We have attracted a highly skilled managaream and specialized workforce, including sé#st engineers, researchers, manufactu
marketing and sales professionals. Our future siscedll depend, in part, on our ability to attraad retain qualified management and techi
personnel. We do not know whether we will be susftésn hiring or retaining qualified personnel. Qnability to hire qualified personnel oi
timely basis, or the departure of key employees|dtmaterially and adversely affect our developneemd profitable commercialization plans
and, therefore, our business prospects, resutiperfations and financial condition.

We have incurred losses, anticipate continuing twirr losses and might never achieve or maintain fitability.

We have not achieved profitability in anyagter since our formation and we will continuértcur net losses until we can produce
sufficient revenue to cover our costs. Our netdesattributable to the Company were approximat88:/% million in 2014, $62.7 million in
2013, $31.9 million in 2012, $27.5 million in 20Jdnd $47.0 million in 2010. As of December 31, 2044 had an accumulated deficit of
$938.1 million. We anticipate that we will contintgeincur losses until we can produce and sellppaducts on a large-scale and cost-effective
basis. We cannot guarantee when we will operatitgioty, if ever. In order to achieve profitabilitgmong other factors, management must
successfully execute our planned path to profitglih the early adoption markets on which we areused, the hydrogen infrastructure that is
needed to support our growth readiness and casiegffy must be available and cost efficient, weshuontinue to shorten the cycles in our
product roadmap with respect to product reliabiibyd performance that our customers expect anassitd introduction of our products into
the market, we must accurately evaluate our mafketsind react to, competitive threats in botheotiechnologies (such as advanced batterie
and our technology field, and we must continuetedr our products' build costs and lifetime sendgosts. If we are unable to successfully
these steps, we may never operate profitably, ewra) if we do achieve profitability, we may be ullealo sustain or increase our profitability
the future.

We may require additional capital funding and sudapital may not be available to us.

We have experienced recurring operatingdss@nd as of December 31, 2014, we had an acdechdleficit of approximately
$938.1 million. On December 31, 2014, we had cashcash equivalents of $146.2 million and net wagkiapital of $167.0 million. This
compares to $5.0 million and $11.1 million, respedy, on December 31, 2013.
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Our cash requirements relate primarily toking capital needed to operate and grow our fassinincluding funding operating expenses,
growth in inventory to support both shipments afvneits and servicing the installed base, and oaeti development and expansion of our
products. Our ability to achieve profitability antkeet future liquidity needs and capital requireraamitl depend upon numerous factors,
including the timing and quantity of product ordarsl shipments; the timing and amount of our opegaxpenses; the timing and costs of
working capital needs; the timing and costs ofding a sales base; the timing and costs of devejopiarketing and distribution channels; the
timing and costs of product service requiremeis;timing and costs of hiring and training prodstetff; the extent to which our products gain
market acceptance; the timing and costs of prodietlopment and introductions; the extent of ougadmg and any new research and
development programs; and changes in our strategyrgplanned activities. We expect that we mayi@gsignificant additional capital to
fund and expand our future operations. In partigutathe event that our operating expenses afeehithan anticipated or the gross margins
shipments of our products are lower than we expeetnay need to implement contingency plans to@mesour liquidity or raise additional
capital to meet our operating needs. Such plansintiyde: a reduction in discretionary expensesdiing from licensing the use of our
technologies, debt and equity financing alternatigmvernment programs, and/or a potential busic@sbination, strategic alliance or sale of
a portion or all of the Company. If we are unalbléund our operations and therefore cannot sufithime operations, we may be required to
delay, reduce and/or cease our operations and#@ribsmkruptcy protection.

We cannot assure you that any necessaiticadd financing will be available on terms favbta to us, or at all. We believe that it could
be difficult to raise additional funds and there & no assurance as to the availability of adutifinancing or the terms upon which
additional financing may be available. Additionakgven if we raise sufficient capital through aibdil equity or debt financings, strategic
alternatives or otherwise, there can be no asseridwat the revenue or capital infusion will be &igint to enable us to develop our business
level where it will be profitable or generate po&tcash flow. If we raise additional funds throubhk issuance of equity or convertible debt
securities, the percentage ownership of our stddene could be significantly diluted, and these lyeggsued securities may have rights,
preferences or privileges senior to those of engssitockholders. If we incur additional debt, astabtial portion of our operating cash flow
may be dedicated to the payment of principal atet@st on such indebtedness, thus limiting fundélaie for our business activities. The
terms of any debt securities issued could also gagignificant restrictions on our operations. Brosrket and industry factors may seriously
harm the market price of our common stock, regaedtd our operating performance, and may adveisgiact our ability to raise additional
funds. If we raise additional funds through colledimns and/or licensing arrangements, we mightheired to relinquish significant rights to
our technologies, or grant licenses on terms tfeahat favorable to us.

Our stock price and stock trading volume has beendaould remain volatile, which could further adveely affect the market price of our
stock, our ability to raise additional capital anolf cause us to be subject to securities class aclitigation.

The market price of our common stock hasohically experienced and may continue to expegesignificant volatility. In 2014, the sales
price of our common stock fluctuated from a higt$dl.72 per share to a low of $1.89 per share ptagress in developing and
commercializing our products, our quarterly op@rgtiesults, announcements of new products by osiocompetitors, our perceived
prospects, changes in securities' analysts' recomlatiens or earnings estimates, changes in gecamditions in the economy or the financial
markets, adverse events related to our stratelgitaeships, significant sales of our common stbglexisting stockholders, including one or
more of our strategic partners, and other developsraffecting us or our competitors could causentheket price of our common stock to
fluctuate substantially. In addition, in recent gdhe stock market has experienced significanemnd volume fluctuations. This volatility
affected the market prices of
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securities issued by many companies for reasoredatad to their operating performance and may adeaffect the price of our common
stock. Such market price volatility could adversaffiect our ability to raise additional capital.dddition, we may be subject to additional
securities class action litigation as a resultaétility in the price of our common stock, whicbutd result in substantial costs and diversion o
management's attention and resources and coulddwarstock price, business, prospects, resultpefaiions and financial condition.

Sales of a substantial number of sharesioEommon stock in the public market could ocduargy time. These sales, or the market
perception that the holders of a large number afeshintend to sell shares, could reduce the maria of our common stock.

Additionally, market conditions may resialtvolatility in the level of, and fluctuations ithe market prices of stocks generally and, in,
our common stock and sales of substantial amodrisracommon stock in the market, in each casegbeimelated or disproportionate to
changes in our operating performance.

If securities or industry analysts do not publisbr cease publishing, research or reports about asy business or our market, or if the
change their recommendations regarding our stockvadsely, our stock price and trading volume couleatine.

The trading market for our common stocK b influenced by the research and reports ththtstry or securities analysts may publish
about us, our business, our market or our compstitbany of the analysts who may cover us chahgi& recommendation regarding our st
adversely, or provide more favorable relative regmndations about our competitors, our stock prioaldvlikely decline. If any analyst who
may cover us were to cease coverage of our commaiayl to regularly publish reports on us, we abldse visibility in the financial markets,
which in turn could cause our stock price or trgdimlume to decline.

We face risks associated with our plans to marldistribute and service our products and serviceteimationally.

We intend to market, distribute, sell ardvice our product offerings internationally. Wevbdimited experience developing and
manufacturing our products to comply with the comeied and legal requirements of international m&sk®ur success in international marl
will depend, in part, on our ability and that ofrgartners to secure relationships with foreign-digtributors, and our ability to manufacture
products that meet foreign regulatory and commereguirements. Additionally, our planned interoatl operations are subject to other
inherent risks, including potential difficulties @mforcing contractual obligations and intellectpadperty rights in foreign countries and
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Alsohtéxtent our operations and assets are locafedeign countries, they are potentially subject
to nationalization actions over which we will hawe control.

For example, we are party to a joint veato@sed in France with Axane, S.A. under the nagieuldion to develop and sell hydrogen fuel
cell systems for the European material handlingketaHowever, for the reasons discussed above, iglumay not be able to accomplish its
goals or become profitable.

Doing business in foreign markets requireso be able to respond to rapid changes in mddgal, and political conditions in these
countries. As we expand in international markees,may face numerous challenges, including unexgeatanges in regulatory requirements,
potential conflicts or disputes that countries rhaye to deal with, fluctuations in currency exctengtes, longer accounts receivable
requirements and collections, difficulties in mainagnternational operations, potentially adveisetonsequences, restrictions on repatriatior
of earnings and the burdens of complying with aemidriety of international laws. Any of these fastoould adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. The successuofinternational expansion will depend, in part,aur ability to succeed in differing legal,
regulatory, economic, social and political enviramts.
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We currently are, and may from time to time becoramamed party in contract disputes for which anwedse outcome could result in us
incurring significant expenses, being liable for daages and subject to indemnification claims.

From time to time, we may be subject totamt disputes or litigation. In connection withyatisputes or litigation in which we are
involved, we may be forced to incur costs and egpsrin connection with defending ourselves or imeation with the payment of any
settlement or judgment or compliance with any igjions in connection therewith if there is an umiable outcome. The expense of defen
litigation may be significant. The amount of tinteresolve lawsuits is unpredictable and defending@ves may divert management's attel
from the day-to-day operations of our businessgctviebuld adversely affect our business, finanaialdition, results of operations and cash
flows. In addition, an unfavorable outcome in angtslitigation could have a material adverse eféecbur business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately repaur financial results or prevent fraud
which could harm our brand and operating results.

Effective internal controls over financiaporting are necessary for us to provide reliablé accurate financial reports and effectively
prevent fraud. We have devoted significant resaiagel time to comply with the internal control ofiaancial reporting requirements of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. In addition, Sectiod 4@der the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requiresvileeassess the design and operating
effectiveness of our controls over financial repayt We are currently required to have our auditdtsst to the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting. Our compliancetwihe annual internal control report requiremeifitadepend on the effectiveness of our
financial reporting and data systems and conttofsrior internal controls increase the possibitfyerrors and could cause investors to lose
confidence in our reported financial informatiorhieh could have a negative effect on the tradingepof our stock and our access to capital.

In addition, our internal control systeral/ron people trained in the execution of the aastrLoss of these people or our inability to
replace them with similarly skilled and trainediiriduals or new processes in a timely manner cadlersely impact our internal control
mechanisms.

The requirements of being a public company may &traur resources, divert management's attention aaffiect our ability to attract and
retain qualified board members and officers.

As a public company, we are subject toréfporting requirements of the Exchange Act, thinlisrequirements of the NASDAQ Global
Market and other applicable securities rules agdlegions. Compliance with these rules and requiatincrease our legal and financial
compliance costs, make some activities more diffitime-consuming or costly and increase demandwrsystems and resources. The
Exchange Act requires, among other things, thafilw@nnual, quarterly and current reports withpexs to our business and operating results
and maintain effective disclosure controls and pduces and internal control over financial rep@rtifio maintain and, if required, improve «
disclosure controls and procedures and internarabover financial reporting to meet this requigm significant resources and management
oversight are necessary.

Provisions in our charter documents and Delawaravanay discourage or delay an acquisition that stholders may consider favorabl:
which could decrease the value of our common stock.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bykswand Delaware corporate law contain provisioas ¢buld make it harder for a third party to
acquire us without the consent of our board ofaia®s. These provisions include those that: autledhe issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares c
preferred stock in one or more series without aldtolder vote; limit stockholders' ability to capecial meetings; establish advance notice
requirements for nominations for election to ouatbof directors or for
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proposing matters that can be acted on by stockhokat stockholder meetings; and provide for staghjerms for our directors. We have a
shareholders rights plan that may be triggeredéson or group of affiliated or associated pessamyuires beneficial ownership of 15% or
more of the outstanding shares of our common stockddition, in certain circumstances, Delawave #&so imposes restrictions on mergers
and other business combinations between us antaddgr of 15% or more of our outstanding commoilsto

Adverse changes in general economic conditionshe tJnited States or any of the major countries imish we do business could advers:
affect our operating results.

We are subject to the risks arising fromeade changes in global economic conditions. Iheatic growth in the United States and other
countries slows or recedes, our current or proggectistomers may delay or reduce technology pseshalhis could result in reductions in
sales of our products, longer sales cycles, sladeption of new technologies and increased priogpatition, which could materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operatéomd financial condition.

Our business may become subject to future governtiregulation, which may impact our ability to markeur products and costs and price
of our products.

Our products are subject to certain feddéoahl, and non-U.S. laws and regulations, inaiggdfor example, state and local ordinances
relating to building codes, public safety, eleatiand gas pipeline connections, hydrogen tranapontand siting and related matters. See
"Business—Government Regulations" for addition&imation. Further, as products are introduced ihteomarket commercially,
governments may impose new regulations. We do motvikhe extent to which any such regulations mayaiot our ability to manufacture,
distribute, install and service our products. Aagulation of our products, whether at the fedestalie, local or foreign level, including any
regulations relating to the production, operatiastallation, and servicing of our products mayr@ase our costs and the price of our products

Our products use flammable fuels that are inhergntdangerous substances.

Our fuel cell systems use natural gas amidygen gas in catalytic reactions. While our peidwo not use this fuel in a combustion
process, natural gas and hydrogen gas are flamrhaditethat could leak and combust if ignited bptier source. Further, while we are not
aware of any accidents involving our products, sugh accidents involving our products or other potsl using similar flammable fuels could
materially suppress demand for, or heighten regojatcrutiny of, our products.

We may not be able to protect important intellectpaoperty and we could incur substantial costs defling against claims that our produc
infringe on the proprietary rights of others.

PEM fuel cell technology was first develdpe the 1950s, and fuel processing technologybleas practiced on a large scale in the
petrochemical industry for decades. Accordingly,deenot believe that we can establish a signifigaaprietary position in the fundamental
component technologies in these areas. Howeverhulity to compete effectively will depend, in pasn our ability to protect our proprietary
system-level technologies, systems designs and fagtoting processes. We rely on patents, trademaridother policies and procedures
related to confidentiality to protect our intelleat property. However, some of our intellectualgandy is not covered by any patent or patent
application. Moreover, we do not know whether ahgwr pending patent applications will issue orttie case of patents issued or to be iss
that the claims allowed are or will be sufficientlsoad to protect our technology or processes. Ewadhof our patent applications are issued
and are sufficiently broad, our patents may belehgéd or invalidated. We could incur substantists in prosecuting or defending patent
infringement suits or otherwise protecting our lietetual property rights. While we have attemptedafeguard and maintain our proprietary
rights, we do not know whether we have been orlyélcompletely successful in doing so.
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Moreover, patent applications filed in foreign ctiies may be subject to laws, rules and procedhssare substantially different from thost
the United States, and any resulting foreign pateray be difficult and expensive to obtain and m#oln addition, we do not know whether
the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office will grant fegleregistrations based on our pending trademarkcagions. Even if federal registrations
granted to us, our trademark rights may be chadldnlj is also possible that our competitors oeattwill adopt trademarks similar to ours,
thus impeding our ability to build brand identitydapossibly leading to customer confusion. We cauddir substantial costs in prosecuting or
defending trademark infringement suits.

Further, our competitors may independedélyelop or patent technologies or processes teatdrstantially equivalent or superior to o
If we are found to be infringing third party patgnive could be required to pay substantial royatied/or damages, and we do not know
whether we will be able to obtain licenses to usshgatents on acceptable terms, if at all. Fallor@btain needed licenses could delay or
prevent the development, manufacture or sale opmaucts, and could necessitate the expenditusegoificant resources to develop or
acquire non-infringing intellectual property.

Asserting, defending and maintaining our intellecaliproperty rights could be difficult and costly @rfailure to do so may diminish ot
ability to compete effectively and may harm our oang results.

We may need to pursue lawsuits or legabadh the future to enforce our intellectual prayeights, to protect our trade secrets and
domain names, and to determine the validity angead the proprietary rights of others. If thirdpes prepare and file applications for
trademarks used or registered by us, we may oppose applications and be required to participaroceedings to determine the priority of
rights to the trademark. Similarly, competitors neyve filed applications for patents, may haveiv@arkepatents and may obtain additional
patents and proprietary rights relating to prodoctsechnology that block or compete with ours. W&y have to participate in interference
proceedings to determine the priority of inventéond the right to a patent for the technology. latign and interference proceedings, even if
they are successful, are expensive to pursue arddbnsuming, and we could use a substantial anoduntr management and financial
resources in either case.

We rely, in part, on contractual provisions to peatt our trade secrets and proprietary knowledges #tdequacy of which may not be
sufficient.

Confidentiality agreements to which we pagty may be breached, and we may not have adergragalies for any breach. Our trade
secrets may also be known without breach of suokeagents or may be independently developed by ctitoyse Our inability to maintain the
proprietary nature of our technology and processefd allow our competitors to limit or eliminatayacompetitive advantages we may have.

Our government contracts could restrict our abilitg profitably commercialize our technology.

Some of our technology has been developtdstate and federal government funding in thetéthBStates, Canada and other countries.
The United States and Canadian governments hawe-axctlusive, royalty-free, irrevocable world-wiligense to practice or have practiced
some of our technology developed under contractded by the respective government. In some casgsyigment agencies in the United
States or Canada can require us to obtain or peodoimponents for our systems from sources locatétei United States or Canada,
respectively, rather than foreign countries. Ountiacts with government agencies are also suljettet risk of termination at the convenience
of the contracting agencies, potential disclosdireun confidential information to third parties atige exercise of "march-in" rights by the
government. March-in rights refer to the rightloé tUnited States or Canadian governments or govarhagency to license to others any
technology developed under contracts funded bgtivernment if the contractor fails to continue &velop the
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technology. The implementation of restrictions am sourcing of components or the exercise of maraiights could harm our business,
prospects, results of operations and financial itimmd In addition, under the Freedom of Informatiéct, any documents that we have
submitted to the government or to a contractor uadgovernment funding arrangement are subjectibtigpdisclosure that could compromise
our intellectual property rights unless such doautsi@re exempted as trade secrets or as confitlieritiamation and treated accordingly by
such government agencies.

Potential future acquisitions could be difficult totegrate, divert the attention of key personndisrupt our business and impair oL
financial results.

As part of our business strategy, we intencbnsider acquisitions of companies, technobgied products that we believe could improve
our ability to compete in our core markets or allesvto enter new markets. Acquisitions involve ntous risks, any of which could harm our
business, including, difficulty in integrating thechnologies, products, operations and existingraots of a target company and realizing the
anticipated benefits of the combined businessécuty in supporting and transitioning customefsany, of the target company; inability to
achieve anticipated synergies or increase the tevand profit of the acquired business; potentalgtion of our ongoing business and
distraction of management; the price we pay orratbsources that we devote may exceed the valuealige; or the value we could have
realized if we had allocated the purchase pricatloer resources to another opportunity and inglititgenerate sufficient revenue to offset
acquisition costs. In addition, if we finance a@ifinns by issuing equity securities, our existitgckholders may be diluted. As a result, if we
fail to properly evaluate acquisitions or investitsemwe may not achieve the anticipated benefiengfsuch acquisitions, and we may incur
costs in excess of what we anticipate.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

There are no unresolved comments regamingeriodic or current reports from the stafflod SEC that were issued 180 days or more
preceding the end of our year ended December 3%.20

Item 2. Properties

Our principal offices are located in Lathasew York. We lease a 140,000 square foot fadiligt includes our general office building,
our manufacturing facility, and our research andetlpment center. In addition, we lease a 29,20@usgfoot facility in Spokane, Washington
that includes an office building and a manufactfiacility. See Note 17, Commitments and Contingesof the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Part Il, Item 8 of this Form K@er further discussion of the leases. We belithat our facilities are sufficient to accommodate
anticipated production volumes for at least thet her years.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On October 24, 2014, we reached a settlemgmninciple with Soroof Trading Development Coamy Ltd., or Soroof, with respect to the
previously disclosed litigation with Soroof. On Oler 27, 2014, the Court dismissed the action witlpoejudice as to the Company and
cancelled the trial date. The settlement was fiealj and on December 1, 2014, Soroof filed a matatismiss with the Court as settled, and
requested that the arbitration be dismissed wighupiice and without costs. On December 12, 20 B1Cthurt dismissed the case as to the
Company with prejudice, each party to bear thein cwosts.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

During the years ended December 31, 208142843, we issued 74,863 and 1,319,914 sharegatdagly, of our common stock in
connection with matching contributions under out %) Savings & Retirement Plan. The issuance dddtshares is exempt from registration
under Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1988amended.

Market Information. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capitarket under the symbol "PLUG." As of March 9,1%)
there were approximately 628 record holders ofammmon stock. However, management believes thighi#isant number of shares are held
by brokers under a "nominee name" and that the epuwfdbeneficial shareholders of our common stoaleeds 77,000. The following table
sets forth the high and low sale price per shauotommon stock as reported by the NASDAQ Capitatket for the periods indicated:

Sales prices
High Low

2014

1st Quarte $ 1172 $ 1.8¢

2nd Quarte $ 837 $ 3.62

3rd Quarte! $ 647 $ 4.0C

4th Quarte! $ 54 $ 2.6
2013

1st Quarte $ 0.7¢ $ 0.1

2nd Quarte $ 05: $ 0.1t

3rd Quarte! $ 08C $ 0.2¢

4th Quartel $ 224 $ 04:

Dividend Policy. We have never declared or paid cash dividendsuo common stock and do not anticipate paying dagdends in th:
foreseeable future. Any future determination ath&éopayment of dividends will depend upon capiajuirements and limitations imposed by
our credit agreements, if any, and such other fa@e our board of directors may consider.
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Five-Year Performance Graph.Below is a line graph comparing the percentdwgmnge in the cumulative total return of the Conyfsan
common stock, based on the market price of the @oylp common stock, with the total return of comesimcluded within the NASDAQ
Market Index (NQUSBT) and the companies includethinithe Russell 3000 Technology Index for the @@&gommencing December 31,
2009 and ending December 31, 2014. The calculafithhe cumulative total return assumes a $100 invest in the Company's common stc
the NASDAQ Market Index (NQUSBT) and the Russeld@d echnology Index on December 31, 2009 and tinwestment of all dividends, if

any.

$250 |

$200

$150

550

$0

$100 ._‘M

2009

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Plug Power Inc.
#-+++ -+ NASDAQ Market Index (NQUSBT)
@ Russell 3000 Technology Index

Index

Plug Power Inc.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
100.0( 52.11 28.7: 7.04 21.8¢ 42.2¢

Russell 3000 Technology Ind 100.0C 112.7: 111.2¢ 123.3. 156.0( 183.4]
NASDAQ Market Index (NQUSBT  100.0¢ 117.5¢ 117.9: 137.2¢ 183.2¢ 206.0¢

See also Part Il Item 12 in this AnnuapBe on Form 10-K for additional detail relatedstcurity ownership and related stockholder
matters, and for additional detail on equity congagion plan matters.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth selectedafinial data and other operating information of@lmenpany. The selected statements of opere
and balance sheet data for 2014, 2013, 2012, 201112010 as set forth below are derived from thited Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company. The information is only a summanrgt gou should read it in conjunction with the Comya audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes and other finand@hmation included herein and "Management's Disoasand Analysis of Financial Conditi
and Results of Operations."

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share datz

Statements Of Operatior

Product Revenu $ 40,50f $ 18,44¢ $ 20,79 $ 19,59: $ 1341
Service Revenu 21,80¢ 6,65¢ 3,61t 3,631 2,32¢
Research and development contre

revenue 1,91¢ 1,49¢ 1,701 3,88¢ 3,59¢
Licensed technology reven — — 517 13€
Total revenue 64,23( 26,60 26,10¢ 27,62¢ 19,47
Cost of product revent 35,33¢ 20,41 25,35¢ 22,62¢ 17,80(
Cost of service revent 30,55¢ 14,92¢ 12,30« 8,04 5,311
Cost of research and developmen

contract revenue 3,20z 2,50¢ 2,80¢ 6,23: 6,371
Research and development expe 6,46¢ 3,121 5,43¢ 5,65¢ 12,90:
Selling, general and administrative

expense: 21,80¢ 12,32¢ 14,577 14,54¢ 25,57:
Legal reserv 2,40( — — — —
Gain on sale of asse — — — (67%) (3,217
Amortization of intangible asse 2,391 2,271 2,30¢ 2,32: 2,26¢
Other (expense) income, r (50,88:)  (34,11%) 4,81( 3,67: 57(
Loss before income tax: $ (88,81) $ (63,08() $ (31,867 $ (27,459 $ (46,959
Income tax benefi 32E 41( — — —
Net loss attributable to the Compe $ (88,48 $ (62,67() $ (31,867 $ (27,454 $ (46,959
Preferred stock dividends declai (15€) (121) — — —

Net loss attributable to commu
shareholder (88,649 $ (62,79) $ (31,867 $ (27,459 $ (46,959
Loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0560 $ (082)% (099 3% (146 $ (3.59

Weighted average number of
common shares outstandi 159,22¢ 76,43t 34,37¢ 18,77¢ 13,12

Balance Sheet Dat
(at end of the perioc
Unrestricted cash, cash equivalen
and availabl-for-sale securitie $ 146,200 $ 5,027 $ 938 $ 1385 $ 21,35¢

152

Total asset 205,88 35,35¢ 39,46( 55,65¢ 59,171
Borrowings under line of crec — — 3,381 5,40¢ —
Current portion of long-term

obligations 587 71¢ 65C — —
Long-term obligations 20,73¢ 39,98: 7,39( 9,571 3,141
Stockholders' equity (defici 158,28: (17,877 15,03( 29,03¢ 42,91
Working capital 167,03¢ 11,11¢( 6,901 22 ,45; 25,55¢
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion contained in this Form 10eiitains "forward-looking statements,” within theaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act, that imeaisks and uncertainties. Our actual resultsctdiffer materially from those discussed in
this Form 10-K. In evaluating these statements,sfmuld review Part |, Item 1A: Risk Factors and Gonsolidated Financial Statements and
notes thereto included in Part Il, Item 8: FinahSiatements and Supplementary Data of this Fori{.10

Overview

Plug Power Inc., or the Company, is a legdlirovider of alternative energy technology foclisa the design, development,
commercialization and manufacture of hydrogen &edll systems used primarily for the industrial od&d (forklift or material handling) mark
and the stationary power market.

We are focused on proton exchange memboarigEM, fuel cell and fuel processing technologfasl cell/battery hybrid technologies,
and associated hydrogen storage and dispensirgginfcture from which multiple products are avddal fuel cell is an electrochemical
device that combines hydrogen and oxygen to prodlemdricity and heat without combustion. Hydrogederived from hydrocarbon fuels
such as liquid petroleum gas, or LPG, natural gaspane, methanol, ethanol, gasoline or biofuejglrbigen can also be obtained from the
electrolysis of water, or produced on-site at comsulocations through a process known as reformaktug Power develops complete
hydrogen delivery, storage and refueling solutifmmsustomer locations.

We concentrate our efforts on developingnhuofacturing and selling our hydrogen-fueled PEMGive® products on commercial terms
for industrial off-road (forklift or material hanidh) applications, with a focus on multi-shift highlume manufacturing and high throughput
distribution sites.

Recent Developments
Appointment of Chief Financial Officer

On November 10, 2014, the Company annouttedPaul B. Middleton had been appointed as thief&Ginancial Officer of the
Company, effective December 1, 2014.

Results of Operations

Product revenue. Product revenue includes revenue from thesfabeir GenDrive units, as well as revenue from @els stationary
backup power units.

Product revenue for the year ended Dece®be2014 increased $22.0 million or 119.6%, to.$4fillion from $18.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The most significant fatri@ing the large growth in product revenue waes €Company's introduction of the full
turn-key solution. In providing the full solutior onits, hydrogen storage and distribution, uptseevice, and hydrogen delivery, the Compan
made it significantly easier for customers to adbpttechnology and more immediately realize thpctivity benefits. In the product revenue
category, there were 2,406 GenDrive systems shifipetie year ended December 31, 2014 as compar@td GenDrive systems shipped for
the year ended December 31, 2013. Of the GenDiriite shipped in 2014, they were predominantly aissed with the full turn-key solution
and reflect a higher concentration of our smalls€ 3 units. The overall increase in product reedn also due in part to stationary backup
product revenue of $1.9 million stemming from tlogsition of ReliOn early in 2014.
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Product revenue for the year ended Dece®be2013 decreased $2.3 million or 11.3%, to $1@1bon from $20.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. This decrease is printetdyed to fewer shipments during 2013. In thedpod revenue category, there were 918
fuel cell systems shipped for the year ended Deeei®b, 2013 as compared to 1,136 fuel cell sysshipped for the year ended Decembe
2012.

Service revenue: Service revenue includes revenue from hydragstallations, our service and maintenance cordydgtdrogen
delivery contracts, spare parts, and leased units.

Service revenue for the year ended DeceBibe2014 increased $15.1 million or 227.5%, to.82illion from $6.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. As with product revergeinicrease in service revenue is primarily reladetthe Company's introduction of the
turnkey solution in 2014. Specific to service revering,014, stemming primarily from this new offeringe Company recognized revenue
hydrogen installations at over nine sites andwtas effectively the first ever significant hydrogestallation revenue for the Company. In
addition, the service revenue increase stems fnememental GenFuel and GenCare contracts as ouomeeisbase grows and requires
additional hydrogen deliveries and uptime maintesahastly, the increase in service revenue inegasie to service revenue of $1.5 million
stemming from the acquisition of ReliOn early inl20

Service revenue for the year ended Dece®be2013 increased $3.1 million or 84.2%, to $8illion from $3.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase is primai@yed to new GenCare service contracts placezkisying customers during 2013.

Research and development contract revenuResearch and development contract revenue plymelates to cost reimbursement
research and development contracts associatedheittievelopment of PEM fuel cell technology. Weegaily share in the cost of these
programs with our cost-sharing percentages rangimgy 30% to 50% of total project costs. Revenuenftone and material contracts is
recognized on the basis of hours expended plus otfrabursable contract costs incurred during tirgéool. We expect to continue certain
research and development contract work that isa@fe our current product development efforts.

Research and development contract revestubé year ended December 31, 2014 increaseddiidn, or 28.2%, to $1.9 million from
$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 201 increase is primarily related to increasedviagton a Ground Support Equipment
contract.

Research and development contract revestubé year ended December 31, 2013 decreaseariich, or 12.0%, to $1.5 million from
$1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 20t decrease is primarily related to a reducedtefio three funded projects that are
complete or near completion, partially offset bg #tart of a new project.

Cost of product revenue.Cost of product revenue includes direct maltara labor costs, warranty cost, and an allocatiooverhead
costs that relate to the manufacture of our Gerebuivits and ReliOn's backup power units.

Cost of product revenue for the year erdedember 31, 2014 increased $14.9 million, or 7311¥4$35.3 million from $20.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013. Cost of produenue as a percentage of product revenue was 8@r22614 and 110.7% for 2013.
Although costs overall are higher commensurate wilhhme, the Company did see margin improvememh fieverage on the fixed cost base,
supply chain and product design cost down programs manufacturing process improvements. The dvacakase in product costs is also
due to the inclusion of ReliOn's cost of produstereue of $2.1 million.

Cost of product revenue for the year eridedember 31, 2013 decreased $5.0 million, or 19t6%20.4 million from $25.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012. The decreake gost of product revenue was primarily related ttecline in the number of units shippec
in 2013 compared to
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2012. During the year ended December 31, 2013erost of product revenue category, we shipped@&ell systems to end customers as
compared to 1,136 fuel cell systems shipped duhiegrear ended December, 2012.

Cost of service revenue.Cost of service revenue includes the laborraatérial costs incurred for our hydrogen instathasi, our product
service and hydrogen site maintenance contracts)yalrogen delivery contracts, replacement pagtstal units (short term) and leased unit:
addition, cost of service revenue also includescalion of overhead costs that relate to the siewyiof our products.

Cost of service revenue for the year eridlecember 31, 2014 increased $15.7 million, or 194 6 $30.6 million from $14.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increabe icost of service revenue was primarily relatetthéonew hydrogen site installation
projects (which we did not have in 2013), a higmember of GenFuel and GenCare service contra@81id (including service personnel to
maintain these contracts and hydrogen deliverag),$1.1 million of costs associated with the neadguired ReliOn.

Cost of service revenue for the year eridlecember 31, 2013 increased $2.6 million, or 21 8%$14.9 million from $12.3 million for tk
year ended December 31, 2012. The increase ittt service revenue was primarily related taghér number of GenCare serv
contracts in 2013 (including service personnel &ntain these contracts) which was offset by addéi expenses for unanticipated warranty
claims arising from GenDrive component quality ssthat were recorded during the year ended Deae®ib@012.

Cost of research and development contraeenue. Cost of research and development contract tevercludes costs associated with
research and development contracts including: aadmon-cash compensation and benefits for engimieend related support staff, fees paid
to outside suppliers for subcontracted componemdssarvices, fees paid to consultants for senpecegided, materials and supplies used and
other directly allocable general overhead costscatked to specific research and development cdstrac

Cost of research and development conteatnue for the year ended December 31, 2014 irexiek& 7 million, or 27.8% to $3.2 million
from $2.5 million for the year ended December 3112 The increase is primarily related to increaastity on a Ground Support Equipment
contract.

Cost of research and development conteaetrtue for the year ended December 31, 2013 ded&8s3 million, or 10.7% to $2.5 million
from $2.8 million for the year ended December 3112 The decrease is primarily related to a rededfedt on three funded projects that are
complete or near completion, partially offset bg #tart of a new project.

Research and development expendgesearch and development expense includesriaiat® build development and prototype units,
cash and nowrash compensation and benefits for the enginearidgelated staff, expenses for contract enginészs,paid to outside suppli¢
for subcontracted components and services, fedstpaionsultants for services provided, materiats supplies consumed, facility related ct
such as computer and network services, and ottmargleoverhead costs associated with our reseacthevelopment activities.

Research and development expense for treeymled December 31, 2014 increased $3.4 mithioh07.3%, to $6.5 million from
$3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018s increase was primarily related to an incréeageersonnel related expenses, coupled
with $1.1 million in research and development exygsrdue to the acquisition of ReliOn. Incremergaéarch and development costs, outside
of ReliOn, were specifically associated with thevriarn-key commercial solution as well as numerprluct cost-down programs and
product design performance enhancements.
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Research and development expense for treeyeled December 31, 2013 decreased $2.3 midicdR.6%, to $3.1 million from
$5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2atts decrease was primarily related to a declingeirsonnel related expenses, coupled witl
a decline in professional fees.

Selling, general and administrative expsnseSelling, general and administrative expenselsides cash and non-cash compensation,
benefits and related costs in support of our gémeraorate functions, including general managemfamance and accounting, human
resources, selling and marketing, information tedbgy and legal services.

Selling, general and administrative experisethe year ended December 31, 2014 increas&ddifiion, or 76.9%, to $21.8 million from
$12.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2018s increase was primarily related to an increaggersonnel related expenses to suppor
the substantial growth in the business includirggemental salesforce, additional finance staff, asditional executive staff. The overall
increase also stemmed from an increase in profeasiees and $2.2 million in expenses now includieel to the acquisition of ReliOn.

Selling, general and administrative experisethe year ended December 31, 2013 decreas@driiion, or 15.4%, to $12.3 million froi
$14.6 million for the year ended December 31, 201®s decrease was primarily related to a declingersonnel related expenses.

Legal reserve. Legal reserve represents the estimated resequired for current litigation.

During the year ended December 31, 20B4Cihmpany accrued a $2.4 million liability relatitglitigation dating back to 2008 with
Soroof Trading Development Company Ltd.

Amortization of intangible assets.Amortization of intangible assets represengsaimortization associated with the Company's aeduir
identifiable intangible assets, including acquitechnology and customer relationships, which anegbemortized over five to ten years.

Amortization of intangible assets remaistable at $2.4 million, $2.3 million and $2.3 nahi for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Interest and other income. Interest and other income consists primarilintérest earned on our cash and cash equivalatesest
earned on our note receivable, interest earnedipeade-leaseback transaction, rental income, émet ncome.

Interest and other income increased to@apprately $752,000 for the year ended DecembeB14 from approximately $150,000 for 1
year ended December 31, 2013. This increase isapiintelated to the settlement of a license aresmgnt at ReliOn resulting in income
$556,000, coupled with an increase in interestezhom our cash balances.

Interest and other income decreased tooappately $150,000 for the year ended Decembe2313 from approximately $226,000 for
year ended December 31, 2012. This decrease isupiimelated to a decline in rental income, offegtan increase in interest earned on
sale-leaseback transaction, and note receivable.

Gain on bargain purchase. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the'ditue of the acquired net assets of ReliOn exedéhe
purchase consideration, and therefore a gain ayabapurchase of $1.0 million was recognized.

Change in fair value of common stock wartability. ~ We account for common stock warrants in acawedavith applicable
accounting guidance provided in ASC Subtopic 815B#Jivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity's Owquify, as either derivative
liabilities or as equity instruments depending loa $pecific terms of the warrant agreement. Dexigatarrant liabilities are valued using the
Black-Scholes pricing model at the date of iniisluance and each subsequent balance sheet
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date. Changes in the fair value of the warrantseftected in the consolidated statements of omaratas change in the fair value of common
stock warrant liability.

The change in fair value of common stockrat liability for the year ended December 31,£204sulted in an increase in the associated
warrant liability of $52.3 million as compared to imcrease of $37.1 million for the year ended Deloer 31, 2013, and a decrease of
$4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2atese variances are primarily due to changes iCtdrapany's common stock share price,
and changes in volatility of our common stock, vihige significant inputs to the Black-Scholes vabramodel.

Interest and other expense and foreigneney gain (loss). Interest and other expense consists of intaresbther expenses related to
the now expired Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) Loan a®écurity Agreement, interest related to obligationder capital lease, interest related to
our finance obligation, and foreign currency exa®gain (l0ss).

Interest and other expense and foreigreaayr gain (loss) for the year ended December 314 2éas approximately $387,000, compared
to approximately $398,000 for the year ended Deerlh, 2013. This decrease is primarily related tiecline in interest expense related to
the expired SVB Loan and Security Agreement couplitd a decline in foreign currency exchange gain.

Interest and other expense and foreigreaayr gain (loss) for the year ended December 313 s approximately $398,000, compared
to approximately $262,000 for the year ended Deeer8lh, 2012. This increase is primarily relateihterest expense on obligations under
capital lease, which began in the fourth quarte2Gif2, and interest expense related to our finabtigation, which began in the first quarter of
2013, offset by a decline in interest and othereasgs related to our SVB Loan and Security Agre¢maérich expired on March 29, 2013.

Gain on sale of equity interest in joinhttge.  Gain on sale of equity interest in joint veretoepresents the gain on sale of a 25%
ownership interest in our joint venture, HyPulsion.

On February 29, 2012, we completed the &vion of our joint venture with Axane, S.A., a sidlisry of Air Liquide, under the name
HyPulsion, or the JV. We contributed to the JV tight to use our technology, including design axhnhology know-how on GenDrive
systems, in exchange for an initial 45% ownersffifhe JV. On April 19, 2013, Axane purchased antaathl 25% ownership interest in
HyPulsion from the Company for a cash purchaseefc$3.3 million (Euro 2.5 million). We now own #Z0and Axane owns 80% of
HyPulsion.

Income taxes. The deferred tax asset generated from ourpestating loss has been offset by a full valuatibowance because it is
more likely than not that the tax benefits of tle¢ operating loss carry forward will not be reatiz€he Company also recognizes accrued
interest and penalties related to unrecognizedtémefits as a component of income tax expense.

Income tax benefit for the years ended Demmr 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was approxiyn285,000 and $410,000,
respectively, due to reductions in accrued intemastpenalties as a result of expirations of tlsea@ated statute of limitations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash requirements relate primarily twking capital needed to operate and grow our fssinincluding funding operating expenses,
growth in inventory to support both shipments afvneits and servicing the installed base, fundiggdrowth in our GenKey "turn-key"
solutions which also includes the installation of oustomer's hydrogen infrastructure as well disety of the hydrogen molecule, and
continued development and expansion of our prod@uis ability to achieve profitability and meetdne liquidity needs and capital
requirements will depend upon numerous factordudicg the timing and quantity of product ordersl ahipments; the timing and amount of

29




Table of Contents

our operating expenses; the timing and costs okiwwgrcapital needs; the timing and costs of bugdinsales base; the timing and costs of
developing marketing and distribution channels;timing and costs of product service requiremeths;timing and costs of hiring and training
product staff; the extent to which our productsngaiarket acceptance; the timing and costs of pitodiemelopment and introductions; the ex
of our ongoing and any new research and developpregtams; and changes in our strategy or our plwmtivities. If we are unable to fund
our operations without additional external finargcand therefore cannot sustain future operatiorsnay be required to delay, reduce and/or
cease our operations and/or seek bankruptcy piartect

We have experienced and continue to expegieegative cash flows from operations and neelmsThe Company incurred net losses
attributable to common shareholders of $88.6 mmi|li$62.8 million and $31.9 million for the yearsdded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and has an accumulated deficit oBEBillion at December 31, 2014.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2014 was $40.8 milidditionally, on December 31, 2014, we |
cash and cash equivalents of $146.2 million andvoeking capital of $167.0 million. This compares$#5.0 million and $11.1 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2013.

During 2014, we received gross proceedil@b.7 million from three underwritten public offegs. Net proceeds after underwriting
discounts and commissions and other estimatedafeexpenses were $165.7 million. See Note 5 (8tidkrs' Equity) of the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more detail. In additiduring 2014 we received $18.3 million from the of previously issued common stock
warrants.

To date, we have funded our operations gmilgnthrough public and private offerings of command preferred stock, a sale-leaseback of
our building, and our previous line of credit andtuorities. The Company believes that its curreshcaash equivalents, cash generated from
future sales and cash generated from the exertm@standing warrants will provide sufficient liglity to fund operations for at least the next
twelve months. This projection is based on ourenirexpectations regarding product sales, costtsie, cash burn rate and operating
assumptions.

During the year ended December 31, 201=h caed for operating activities was $40.8 milliconsisting primarily of a net loss
attributable to the Company of $88.5 million, cagivith changes in operating assets and liabildfekl2.1 million, offset by net non-cash
expenses in the amount of $59.8 million, includhdg3 million for amortization and depreciation, $4nillion for stock based compensation,
$1.0 million for the gain on bargain purchase aB2.$ million for the change in fair value of comm&tnck warrant liability. Cash used by
investing activities for the year ended December2B14 was $1.0 million, consisting of $1.4 milliased to acquire property, plant and
equipment, offset by $0.4 million received from #eguisition of ReliOn. Cash provided by financadivities for the year ended
December 31, 2014 was $182.9 million consistingnprily of $165.7 million in net proceeds from pubdifferings, $18.3 million provided
from the exercise of warrants, and $0.3 milliomirthe exercise of stock options, offset by $0.8iamilfor the purchase of treasury stock and
$0.8 million for principal payments on long-termbtle

Several key indicators of liquidity are suarized in the following table:

2014 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 146,208 $ 5,021 $ 9,38(
Borrowings under line of credit at end of per — — 3,381
Working capital at end of peric 167,03¢ 11,11¢( 6,901
Net loss attributable to common shareholc 88,64« 62,79: 31,86:
Net cash used in operating activit 40,78( 26,88: 20,16¢
Purchase of property, plant and equipn 1,41% 111 78

30




Table of Contents
Income Taxes

Under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Secti@®, 3he use of loss carryforwards may be limitea ghange in ownership of a company
occurs. If it is determined that due to transadimvolving the Company's shares owned by its Bgdrshareholders a change of ownership
has occurred under the provisions of IRC Sectid & Company's federal and state net operatsgydarryforwards could be subject to
significant IRC Section 382 limitations.

Based upon IRC Section 382 studies, Se@&hownership changes occurred in 2013, 2012 aad that resulted in $728 million of the
Company's $764 million of federal and state netafieg loss carryforwards being subject to IRC Bec882 limitations. As a result of IRC
Section 382 limitations, $715 million of the $72& mperating loss carryforwards that are limitetl @xpire prior to utilization and
consequently, these net operating loss carryforsviiralt will expire unutilized are not reflectedtfire Company's gross deferred tax asset as o
December 31, 2014.

The ownership changes also resulted inUMeealized Built in Losses per IRS Notice 2003-@%ial should result in Recognized Built in
Losses during the five year recognition periodggraximately $40.7 million. This will translate smtinfavorable book to tax add backs in the
Company's 2014 to 2018 U.S. corporate income taxme that resulted in a gross deferred tax lighdf $8.0 million at December 31, 2014
with a corresponding reduction to the valuationwalince. This gross deferred tax liability will affcertain existing gross deferred tax assets
(i.e. capitalized research expense). This has padton the Company's current financial positiesuits of operations, or cash flows because
of the full valuation allowance.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations as of December2Bil4, under agreements with non-cancelable terenasafollows:

Total <1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years
Capital lease obligation
(A) 586,87 586,87 — — —
Operating lease
obligations(B) 17,577,79 2,984,13. 6,066,98. 5,999,98. 2,526,69'
Purchase obligations(( 45,72( 27,72( 18,00( — —
Finance obligation(D 6,614,48! 459,56t 919,13: 981,38! 4,254,40!

$ 24,824,88 $ 4,058,291 $ 7,004,11. $ 6,981,36¢ $ 6,781,10.

(A)  On December 28, 2012, Plug Power sold GenDrivesuait third party and subsequently entered inéase-back
agreement with an effective start date of Octoh@012, with the owner/lessor of the equipmenetse the equipment
Plug Power for a period of 6 years. This transactias been recorded by the Company as a capisal. Iemder the terms
of the lease, Plug Power has received the rightséahe equipment for the full term of the leaseigled there is no
uncured event of default under the lease.

(B) The Company has several non-cancelable operatisgdethat expire over the next six years. In additinder a limited
number of arrangements, the Company provides aédymts and services to customers in the form afpsrating lease
that can vary in term from five to six year termfibe Company accounts for these non-cancelabldeateback
transactions as operating leases in accordanceAe@hunting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopi©-&0,Leases—
Sale-Leaseback TransactionSee Note 17 (Commitments and Contingencies)etCibnsolidated Financial Statements
for more detail.

(C) The Company has purchase obligations related totiirtenance of its building and storage of docus
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(D)

On March 27, 2013, the Company completed a sakebesck transaction of its property located at 9y Shaker
Road, Latham, New York, for an aggregate purchase pf $4,500,000, of which $2,750,000 was reagivecash at
closing and $1,750,000 is receivable with 5% anmtelest, over 15 years in equal monthly instafiteef $13,839.
Although the property was sold and the Companynleaggal ownership of the facility, the Company washibited frorr
recording the transaction as a sale because ahoémy involvement with the property. Accordingtie sale has been
accounted for as a financing transaction, whicliireg the Company to continue reporting the bugdis an asset and to
record a financing obligation for the sale pric@aMdilities relating to this agreement of $2,426,@28l $66,303 have been
recorded as finance obligation and current poffiilmance obligation (other current liabilities), pestively, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of Desredi, 2014.

In connection with the sale-leaseback transactienalso entered into an agreement with the buygsyant to which the
Company leases from the buyer a portion of the mesnsold for a term of 15 years. Monthly paymeelsting to this
agreement are $38,297, $41,243, and $44,189, fosYy-5, €-10, and 1-15, respectively

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with generally accepted accounting piples and related disclosures requires
management to make estimates and assumptions.

We believe that the following are our mastical accounting estimates and assumptions tiragany must make in the preparation of its
Consolidated Financial Statements and relatedatisoés:

Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue under arrangsrfagrproducts and services, which may includestide of
products and related services, including reveno® finstallation, service and maintenance, spares,paydrogen fueling services, which may
include hydrogen supply as well as hydrogen fuelirigastructure, and leased units. The Company r@sognizes revenue under research anc
development contracts, which are primarily cogni@irsement contracts associated with the developaiétEM fuel cell technology.

The Company enters into revenue arrangestieat may contain a combination of fuel cell systeand equipment, which may be sold, or
under a limited number of arrangements leasedstmers, installation, service, maintenance, spares, hydrogen fueling and other support
services. For these multiple deliverable arrangasyéine Company accounts for each separate ddblecas a separate unit of accounting if the
delivered item or items have value to the custoomea standalone basis. The Company considers\edaie to have standalone value if the
item is sold separately by us or another entitif thre item could be resold by the customer. Thenfany allocates revenue to each separate
deliverable based on its relative selling price. &majority of our deliverables, the Company deiges relative selling prices using its best
estimate of the selling price as vendor-specifigctive evidence and third-party evidence is gdhermt available for the deliverables
involved in its revenue arrangements due to a ddiekcompetitive environment in selling fuel celthnology. When determining estimated
selling prices, the Company may consider the apoptaduce the deliverable, the anticipated margithat deliverable, the selling price and
profit margin for similar products and serviceg tbompany's ongoing pricing strategy and polidies,value of any enhancements that have
been built into the deliverable and the charadiesi®f the varying markets in which the deliverald sold, as applicable. The Company
determines estimated selling prices for delivermbiats agreements based on the specific factsmouimstances of each arrangement and
analyzes the estimated selling prices used fallitsation of arrangement consideration on eacdmngement.
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Once relative selling prices are determjnied Company proportionately allocates the satesicieration to each element of the
arrangement. The allocated sales consideratioteceta fuel cell systems and equipment, spare pamts hydrogen infrastructure is recognizec
as revenue at shipment if title and risk of losgehpassed to the customer, there is persuasivereadf an arrangement, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, collection of the relatedeigable is reasonably assured, and customer @wptriteria, if any, have been successfully
demonstrated. The allocated sales consideratiateckto installation, service, maintenance, anddgeh molecule delivery is generally
recognized as revenue when completed or on a lstriig basis over the term of the contract, ag@miate.

In the case of consignment sales, the Cagngaes recognize revenue until the customer haepéed the product, at which time the risks
and rewards of ownership have transferred, thepsi€ixed, and the Company has a reasonable etfmtof collection upon billing.

The Company does not include a right afmrebn its products other than rights related torargy provisions that permit repair or
replacement of defective goods. The Company acdanesnticipated warranty costs at the same timaerevenue is recognized for the related
product.

The Company has also sold extended war@ntiracts that generally provide for a five to year warranty from the date of product
installation. These types of contacts are accouitteds a separate deliverable, and accordingigmee generated from these transactions is
deferred and recognized in income over the warrpatiod, generally on a straight-line basis. Adufitilly, the Company may enter into annua
service and maintenance contracts that are billectiny. Revenue generated from these transactsorecognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the contract.

Contract accounting is used for researchdmvelopment contract revenue. The Company génetares in the cost of these programs
with cost sharing percentages generally ranging f88% to 50% of total project costs. Revenue frionetand material contracts is recognized
on the basis of hours expended plus other reimbles®ntract costs incurred during the period.albwable work performed through the end
of each calendar quarter is billed, subject tothtions in the respective contracts.

Product warranty reserve: The GenDrive contracts we enter into generaigvide a one to two year product warranty to cugiis from
date of installation, and the ReliOn contracts weeeinto generally provide a two to five year protlwarranty. We currently estimate the c
of satisfying warranty claims based on an analgksast experience and provide for future claimghaperiod the revenue is recognized.
Factors that affect our warranty liability incluttee number of installed units, estimated mateats, estimated travel, and labor costs. The
Company's product warranty reserve as of Decemhe2®L4, and December 31, 3013 was approximateB iilion and $1.6 million,
respectively.

Valuation of long-lived assets: We assess the impairment of Idhgd assets, including identifiable intangible etisswhenever events
changes in circumstances indicate that the carwyahge may not be recoverable. Factors we congigeortant that could trigger an
impairment review include, but are not limited ttee following:

. significant underperformance relative to expédiestorical or projected future operating results;

. significant changes in the manner of our usthefacquired assets or the strategy for our oveusiness;
. significant negative industry or economic trends;

. significant decline in our stock price for a suséal period; and

. our market capitalization relative to net book alu

When we determine that the carrying valuleng-lived assets, including identifiable intabigi assets, may not be recoverable based up
the existence of one or more of the above indisatbimpairment, we would measure any impairmestedaipon the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board

33




Table of Contents

(FASB) ASC No. 350-35-30-14ntangibles—Goodwill and Otheand FASB ASC No. 360-10-35-1Bnpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, as appropriate. Any resulting impairment losslddwave a material adverse impact on our finaremaldition and results of operations.

Stock Based CompensationWe recognize stock-based compensation expasseiated with the vesting of share based instrtsrien
the consolidated statements of operations. Detémgnihe amount of stock-based compensation to dmrded requires us to develop estimates
to be used in calculating the grant-date fair valfistock options. We calculate the grant-datevalues using the Black-Scholes valuation
model. The Black-Scholes model requires us to neskienates of the following assumptions:

Expected volatility—The estimated stockcpriolatility was derived based upon the Compaagtsal stock prices over an historical
period equal to the expected life of the optionisiclv represents the Company's best estimate otegheolatility.

Expected option life—The Company's estintdtan expected option life was calculated in adaoce with the simplified method for
calculating the expected term assumption. The $ieghimethod is a calculation based on the conti@dife and vesting terms of the associ
options.

Risk-free interest rate—We use the yieldzero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities having a ritpiiate that is commensurate with the
expected life assumption as the risk-free intarst The amount of stock-based compensation rézedyduring a period is based on the value
of the portion of the awards that are ultimatelpeoted to vest. Forfeitures are required to beneséid at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfestdiffer from those estimates. The term "forfieift is distinct from "cancellations” or
"expirations" and represents only the unvestedgodf the surrendered option. We review historfoaleiture data and determine the
appropriate forfeiture rate based on that dataré&Mevaluate this analysis periodically and adjhstforfeiture rate as necessary. Ultimately, we
will recognize the actual expense over the vegtigripd only for the shares that vest.

Warrant Accounting: We account for common stock warrants in acawrdavith applicable accounting guidance provideBASB ASC
Topic 815,Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity's Owgquiy, as either derivative liabilities or as equitytmsnents depending on t
specific terms of the warrant agreement. In conmglawith applicable securities law, registered camrstock warrants that require the
issuance of registered shares upon exercise andtdufficiently preclude an implied right to cas#ttlement are accounted for as derivative
liabilities. We classify these derivative warraiabilities on the consolidated balance sheetslasgterm liability, which is revalued at each
balance sheet date subsequent to the initial isgu&ile use the Black-Scholes pricing model to viteaderivative warrant liability. The
Black-Scholes pricing model, which is based, irt,pgson unobservable inputs for which there itelitir no market data, requires the Compan
to develop its own assumptions.

The Company used the following assumptfon&s common stock warrants issued on Januar2@d4. The risk-free interest rate for
January 20, 2014 (issuance date) and Decembef34,#as 1.65% and 1.35%, respectively. The valatii the market price of the
Company's common stock for January 20, 2014 ane@mber 31, 2014 was 107.6% and 119.2%, respectiVably expected average term of
the warrants used for January 20, 2014 and Dece®ih&014 was 5.0 years and 4.0 years, respectively

The Company used the following assumptfon&s common stock warrants issued on Februan2@@3. The risk-free interest rate for
February 20, 2013 (issuance date), December 3B &0d December 31, 2014 was 0.85%, 1.14% and 1.@&¥ectively. The volatility of the
market price of the Company's common stock for &atyr 20, 2013, December 31, 2013, and Decemb&@®H4 was 102.0%, 99.0% and
126.2%, respectively. The expected average tereofvarrants used for February 20, 2013, Decemhbe2(@®L3 and December 31, 2014 was
5.0 years, 4.1 years and 3.1 years, respectively.

The Company used the following assumptfongs common stock warrants issued on May 31,120he risk-free interest rate for
May 31, 2011 (issuance date), December 31, 2013, an
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December 31, 2014 was 0.75%, 0.52% and 0.21%,cteeplg. The volatility of the market price of tii@ompany's common stock for May 31,
2011, December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 £vd%09 119.3% and 136.6%, respectively. The expentedage term of the warrants
used for May 31, 2011, December 31, 2013 and DeeeBith 2014 was 2.4 years, 2.4 years and 1.4 yesectively.

There was no expected dividend yield ferwrarrants granted. If factors change and diffeasstimptions are used, the warrant liability
and the change in estimated fair value could benadlly different. Generally, as the market prideor common stock increases, the fair value
of the warrant increases, and conversely, as thikeharice of our common stock decreases, thestdire of the warrant decreases. Also, a
significant increase in the volatility of the markeice of the Company's common stock, in isolagtimauld result in a significantly higher fair
value measurement; and a significant decreaselatiity would result in a significantly lower fairalue measurement. Changes in the fair
value of the warrants are reflected in the conatdid statements of operations as change in faiewal common stock warrant liability.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of recently adopted and negoanting pronouncements is included in Note 2 (Samyrof Significant Accounting Policies)
of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Paitdin 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

From time to time, we may invest our cash@vernment, government backed and interest-bpariestment-grade securities that we
generally hold for the duration of the term of thepective instrument. We do not utilize derivafimancial instruments, derivative commodity
instruments or other market risk sensitive instrateepositions or transactions in any materialifashWe are not subject to any material risks
arising from changes in interest rates, foreigmenoy exchange rates, commodity prices, equityeprar other market changes that affect
market risk sensitive instruments.

Our exposure to changes in foreign curreatss is primarily related to sourcing inventamryrh foreign locations. This practice can give
rise to foreign exchange risk resulting from theyirag cost of inventory to the receiving locatidihe Company mitigates this risk through
local sourcing efforts.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia

The Company's Consolidated Financial Stateémincluded in this report beginning at pagedfelincorporated in this Iltem 8 by
reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Prouesk

As required by rule 13a-15(b) under theuiies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Bmgk Act"), as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the @any's management conducted an evaluation undsugevision and with the
participation of the Company's Chief Executive €dfiand Chief Financial Officer regarding the effganess of the design and operation o
Company's disclosure controls and procedures (aseden Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under thehB®ge Act). Based upon that
evaluation the Company's management has conclhdethe Company's disclosure controls and proceduege effective as of December 31,
2014.
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(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Colndver Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsiblestablishing and maintaining adequate internalrobaver financial reporting, as such term
is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) undexr Bxchange Act. The Company's internal control dwamncial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdingliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegatedunting principles, and includes those polieied procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaalsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengactions and dispositions of
assets of the Company;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accouptimgiples and, that receipts and expendituree®Qompany are being
made only in accordance with authorization of mamagnt and directors of the Company; and

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatitmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material affetite financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management, including thef@xecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officessaessed as of December 31, 2014 the
effectiveness of the Company's internal controkdvencial reporting. In making this assessmergnagement used the criteria set forth in the
framework inlnternal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriie Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on the results of thifuatian, management has concluded that the Comgargrnal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014 was effective.

The Company has excluded the operatiofetOn, Inc., acquired during 2014, which is ddsed in Note 3 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, from the scope of managesnasgessment of internal control over financiabrépg. The assets excluded from
management's assessment of internal control avandial reporting comprised approximately 3% oéltabnsolidated assets as of
December 31, 2014. The revenue excluded from mamagis assessment of internal control over findmeforting comprised approximately
5% of total consolidated revenues for the year érdlecember 31, 2014.

The Company's independent registered pabliounting firm has issued a report on the effeogss of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 201Hictvis included in Item 8 of this Annual Reportlearm 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financiatporting

There were no changes in the Company'snateontrol over financial reporting identified @donnection with the evaluation of such
internal control that occurred during the Compaiggs fiscal quarter that have materially affectmdare reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company's internal control over financial reimor.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART III
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance
€) Directors

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the captions "Informa#ibout our Directors” and "Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in then@pany's definitive Proxy Statement for its 201514al Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(b)  Executive Officers

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the captions "Informatibaut our Executive Officers" and
"Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coapte” in the Company's definitive Proxy Statenfenits 2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the Securities andli&nge Commission.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business CoratetEthics that applies to all officers, direct@mployees and consultants of the Company
The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is intetaledmply with Item 406 of Regulation S-K of thecBrities Exchange Act of 1934 and
with applicable rules of The NASDAQ Stock Marketel Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics issplosh our Internet website under the
"Investor" page. Our Internet website addressvisv.plugpower.conilo the extent required or permitted by the rulethefSEC and
NASDAQ, we will disclose amendments and waiveratief) to our Code of Business Conduct and Ethiteénrsame place as our webs

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the caption "Executive gamsation” in the Company's definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Ktawlders to be filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the caption "PrincipatE&tolders” in the Company's definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be filed with the Securities and Exchange @sgion.
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SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

The following table gives information asécember 31, 2014, about the shares of Commork 8tat may be issued upon the exercis
options and restricted stock under the Company@9 Block Option and Incentive Plan, as amended)(8#8ck Option Plan), and the
Company's 2011 Stock Option and Incentive Plan12&bck Option Plan).

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of shares
remaining for future

Number of shares to be Weighted average issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding shares
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 8,190,60(1)$ 3.8¢ 8,238,93(2)
Equity compensation plans n
approved by security holde 650,00((3)$ 1.71 —
Total 8,840,60 8,238,93.

(1) Represents 632,855 outstanding options isgoddr the 1999 Stock Option Plan, 7,084,416 outitgroptions issued
under the 2011 Stock option Plan and 473,336 sldirestricted stock issued under the 2011 Stodko@gPlan.

(2) Includes shares available for future issuance utideP011 Stock Option Plan.

3) Included in Equity compensation plans not apprdwedhareholders are shares granted to new empléyeksy
positions within the company. No specific sharegehaeen allocated for this purpose, but rathertg@uvards are
approved by the Company's Board of Directors ircsjgecircumstances

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the caption "Principat&tolders” in the Company's definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockhadde be filed with the Securities and Exchange @dsgion.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Incorporated herein by reference is therimfation appearing under the caption "Independeulitars Fees" in the Company's definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Rtawlders to be filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
15(a)(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements and notes aredist the Index to Consolidated Financial Statesientpage F-1 of this Report.
15(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The financial statement schedules aredigtéhe Index to Consolidated Financial Statementpage F-1 of this Report.

All other schedules not filed herein haeei omitted as they are not applicable or the requnformation or equivalent information has
been included in the Consolidated Financial Statesner the notes thereto.

15(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibits are as set forth in the "List offitbits" which immediately precedes the Index tm&alidated Financial Statements on page F-1
of this Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

PLUG POWER INC

By: /sl ANDREW MARSH

Andrew Marsh,
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Date: March 17, 2015

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that eachlividual whose signature appears below constitaibesappoints each of Andrew
Marsh, Paul B. Middleton and Gerard L. Conwaysudch person's true and lawful attorney-in-fact agent with full power of substitution, for
such person and in such person's name, place e, §t any and all capacities, to sign any andra#ndments to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhilihereto, and all documents in connection therewitth the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto each said attornefaat-and agent full power and authority to do aadigoem each and every act and thing reqt
and necessary to be done in and about the prerasédlly to all intents and purposes as such pensight or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that any said attorrieyfact and agent, or any substitute or subsstofeany of them, may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Date: March 17, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidoelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

/sl ANDREW MARSH President, Chief Executive Officer and
. March 17,
Director 2015
Andrew Marsk (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ PAUL B. MIDDLETON Chief Financial Officer March 17,
Paul B. Middletor (Principal Financial Officer) 2015
s/ JILL R. MCCOSKEY Chief Accounting Officer March 17,
Jill R. McCoskey (Principal Accounting Officer) 2015
/sl LARRY G. GARBERDING _ March 17,
Director 2015

Larry G. Garberdiny
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/sl MAUREEN O. HELMER

Maureen O. Helme

/s/ DOUGLAS T. HICKEY

Douglas T. Hicke)

/sl GREGORY L. KENAUSIS

Gregory L. Kenausi

/sl GEORGE C. MCNAMEE

George C. McName

/sl XAVIER PONTONE

Xavier Pontone

/s/ JOHAN MINOH ROTH

Johan Minoh Rotl

/sl GARY K. WILLIS

Gary K. Willis

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Certain exhibits indicated below are inaogted by reference to documents of Plug Powed@mvith the Commission. Exhibits nos. 1(
10.5 through 10.10 and 10.14 through 10.20 reptéeermanagement contracts and compensation ptehareangements required to be filed
as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exhibit No.
and Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRlog Power Inc.(7
3.2 Third Amended and Restated -laws of Plug Power Inc.(¢

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and RestatetifiCate of Incorporation of
Plug Power Inc.(7

3.4 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and RightsSeries of Preferred Stock of
Plug Power Inc. classifying and designating theeSek Junior Participating
Cumulative Preferred Stock.(

3.5 Second Certificate of Amendment of Amended and &edtCertificate of
Incorporation of Plug Power Inc.(1

3.€ Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights Series of Preferred Stock of
Plug Power Inc. classifying and designating theeSe€ Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock.(2¢

3.7 Third Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Rest&ertificate of
Incorporation of Plug Power Inc.(2

4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of common stodKl. $ar value, of Plug Power.(

4.2 Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of Jun2@®, between Plug Power Inc.
and Registrar and American Stock Transfer & Trumh@any, LLC, as Rights Agent.

C)

4.2 Amendment No. 1 To Shareholder Rights Agreemenijt
4.4 Amendment No. 2 To Shareholder Rights Agreemenjt
4.5 Amendment No. 3 To Shareholder Rights Agreemenjt
4.€ Amendment No. 4 To Shareholder Rights Agreemenjt
4.7 Amendment No. 5 To Shareholder Rights Agreemenijt
4.€ Form of Warrant.(15
4.¢ Form of Warrant.(23

4.1C Form of Warrant.(26

10.1 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.z Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jun@@96, by and between Plug
Power Inc. and Smart Hydrogen Inc.

10.2 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement.|
10.£ Form of Director Indemnification Agreement(z

10.E Plug Power Executive Incentive Plan.
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10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.€

10.1C

10.11

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢4

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.15

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2¢

10.21

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

23.1

31.1 and 31.

32.1 and 32.

101.INS

101.SCt

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2088and between Andrew Marsh
and Plug Power Inc.(*

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of Ma30B8, by and between Gerard
L. Conway, Jr. and Plug Power Inc.

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of Oct@BeR009, by and between
Erik J. Hansen and Plug Power Inc.(

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of Oct@BeR013, by and between
Keith C. Schmid and Plug Power Inc.(:

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of Nover6p2014, by and between
Paul B. Middleton and Plug Power Inc.(:

Standstill and Support Agreement, dated as of M&0&1 among Plug Power Inc.,
OJSC "INTER RAO UES" and OJSC "Third Generation @any of the Wholesale
Electricity Market".(11)

Master and Shareholders' Agreement, dated as ohda4, 2012, by and between
Axane S.A. and Plug Power, Inc.(]

License Agreement dated as of February 29, 2012ankdybetween HyPulsion, S.A.S.
and Plug Power Inc.(1¢

2011 Stock Option and Incentive Plan.(

Amendment No. 1 to the Plug Power Inc. 2011 Stopkdd and Incentive Plan(2.
Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Option and IneeRiian.(28

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement.(:

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Employees.(

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Independentbiors.(16
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement.(

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of Janua2pP3, by Plug Power Inc. and
968 Albany Shaker Road Associates, LLC(

Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement dateid\aroh 13, 2013 by Plug
Power Inc. and 968 Albany Shaker Road Associate€(24)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Ma§18,2y and between Plug
Power Inc. and Air Liquide Investissements d'Avetide Demonstration(2!

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2083, by and between Plug
Power Inc. and Air Liquide Investissements d'Avestide Demonstration(2!

Consent of KPMG LLP.(3C
Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 2002.(30

Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13&pted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002.(30

XBRL Instance Document(3(

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document(



101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase(:
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101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docur(@0)
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document(

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent{80)

Q) Incorporated by reference to the Company'sectiReport on Form 8-K dated June 29, 2006.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Regjistr&tatement on Form S-1/A (File Number 333-8§089
3) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuReport on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2007.
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRRepiort on Form 8-K dated April 2, 2008.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Forr@ X6r the period ended June 30, 2008.

@) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Forri 1@x-the period ended December 31, 2008.
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuReport on Form 8-K dated October 28, 2009.
9) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Regjistr&tatement on Form 8-A dated June 24, 2009.
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company'seatiReport on Form 8-K dated October 28, 2009.
(11) Incorporated by reference to the CompanyeatiReport on Form 8-K dated November 2, 2009.
(12) Incorporated by reference to the CompanyseatiReport on Form 8-K dated May 6, 2011.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company'eoti Report on Form 8-K dated May 12, 2011.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company'seati Report on Form 8-K dated May 19, 2011.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated May 24, 2011.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Forr® X6r the period ended June 30, 2011.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2012.
(18) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated March 21, 2012.
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated March 26, 2012.
(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated May 18, 2012.

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated February 13, 2013.
(23) Incorporated by reference to the CompanyseotiReport on Form 8-K dated February 14, 2013.
(24) Incorporated by reference to the Companyseati Report on Form 8-K dated April 1, 2013.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the CompanyeotiReport on Form 8-K dated May 8, 2013.

(26) Incorporated by reference to the Company'seati Report on Form 8-K dated May 20, 2013.

(27) Incorporated by reference to the Companyeoti Report on Form 8-K dated October 29, 2013.
(28) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated July 25, 2014

(29) Incorporated by reference to the Company's cuRepiort on Form 8-K dated November 11, 2014

(30) Filed herewitt
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Plug Power Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying congelithalance sheets of Plug Power Inc. and subgdi¢he "Company") as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, comprehensive loss, stockhdldgrsty (deficit), and cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended DeceBthe2014. We also have audited the Company'snateontrol over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2014, based on criteria establighbdernal Control—Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Cbmpany's management is responsible for thesolidated financial statements,
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeatss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Manageraéxhual Report on Internal Control over Finan&aporting (Item 9A.(b)). Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesotidated financial statements and an opiniorhenGompany's internal control over finani
reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accountingrgkt Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmobtain reasonable assurance about whethéintireial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exéal respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements included exarginim a test basis, evidence supporting the amaunatslisclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal @mver financial reporting included obtaining amderstanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a maltereakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegidsign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over finahegporting is a process designed to provide reglslerassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, int@rcontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly,limaterial respects, the financial position of Plug
Power Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2042013, and the results of their operationstheid cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2014rifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountiniggiples. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting asDecember 31, 2014, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework (19985ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission (COSO0).

The scope of management's assessmerteafiah control over financial reporting excluded thternal control over financial reporting of
ReliOn, Inc. ("ReliOn"), which the Company acquiiadipril 2014. ReliOn represented 3% of total assad 5% of total revenue included in
the Company's consolidated financial statementd and for the year ended December 31, 2014. Qdit afiinternal control over financial
reporting of the Company also excluded an evalunaifathe internal control over financial reportiofReliOn.

/sl KPMG LLP

Albany, New York
March 17, 2015
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PLUG POWER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Assets

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 146,205,07 $ 5,026,52:
Accounts receivabl 16,094,78 4,699,73
Inventory 24,735,60 10,406,32
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 5,709,76! 1,850,85!
Total current asse 192,745,22 21,983,43
Restricted cas 500,00t 500,00t
Property, plant, and equipment, | 5,311,90 5,277,66
Leased property under capital lease, 1,936,82 2,453,311,
Note receivablt 447,40¢ 509,94!
Intangible assets, n 1,490,31 2,901,59!
Other asset 3,448,97. 1,729,67!
Total asset $ 205,880,66 $ 35,355,62

Liabilities, Redeemable Preferred Stock, and Stockblders' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 10,185,008 $ 3,094,38
Accrued expense 8,749,35! 3,068,77
Product warranty resen 1,311,44. 1,608,13
Deferred revenu 3,318,91 1,705,06!
Obligations under capital lea 586,87 717,87(
Other current liabilitie: 1,554,96! 679,17¢

Total current liabilities 25,706,64 10,873,40
Obligations under capital lea — 586,87¢
Deferred revenu 8,501,40. 7,308,95.
Common stock warrant liabilit 9,418,411 28,829,84
Finance obligatiol 2,426,02i 2,492,333
Other liabilities 392,33! 765,28

Total liabilities 46,444,82 50,856,69

Redeemable preferred stc
Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock1$gar value
per share
(aggregate involuntary liquidation preference $68,882)
10,431 shares authorize
Issued and outstanding: 5,231 at December 31, 20d4
10,431 at December 31, 20 1,152,72 2,371,08!
Stockholders' equity (deficit
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; 450,00G0ares
authorized
Issued (including shares in treasul
173,644,532 at December 31, 2014 and 106,356,558 at

December 31, 201 1,736,44 1,063,56!
Additional paic-in capital 1,096,391,66 831,155,92
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 897,80 897,80°
Accumulated defici (938,080,76) (849,437,06)

Less common stock in treasu
378,116 shares at December 31, 2014 and 165,906 at

December 31, 201 (2,662,03) (1,552,38)
Total stockholders' equity (defici 158,283,11 (17,872,15)
Total liabilities, redeemable preferred stock, atatkholders

equity (deficit) $ 205,880,66 $ 35,355,62

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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PLUG POWER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

Product revenu

Service revenu

Research and development contract reve
Total revenue

Cost of product revent
Cost of service revent
Cost of research and development contract
revenue
Research and development expe
Selling, general and administrative exper
Legal reservi
Amortization of intangible asse
Operating los!

Interest and other incon

Gain on bargain purcha

Change in fair value of common stock warrant
liability

Interest and other expense and foreign curren
gain (loss

Gain on sale of equity interest in joint vent

Loss before income taxi

Income tax benefi

Net loss attributable to the Compe
Preferred stock dividends declai

Net loss attributable to common shareholc
Loss per share
Basic and dilutet

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding

2014 2013 2012
$ 40,504,92 $ 18,446,08 $ 20,791,87

21,806,22 6,658,81 3,615,25:
1,918,73. 1,496,53 1,701,33
64,229,88  26,601,42  26,108,45
35,334,03  20,414,08 2535354
30,556,29 14,928,559  12,304,15
3,202,12; 2,505,98 2,804,81
6,468,47! 3,121,00 5,434,23!
21,809,222  12,32546  14,576,99
2,400,001 — —
2,391,27 2,270,85! 2,306,48!
(37,931,53)  (28,964,57) (36,671,78)
751,96 150,00¢ 226,12(
1,014,25 — —
(52,259,89) (37,101,81)  4,845,16!
(387,289 (398,279 (261,959

— 3,234,71 —

$ (88,812,50) $ (63,079,94) $ (31,862,45)
324,68 410,25¢ —

$ (88,487,82) $ (62,669,68) $ (31,862,45)
(155,87) (121,119 —

$ (88,643,70) $ (62,790,80) $ (31,862,45)
$ (0.56) $ (0.82) $ (0.99)
159,228.81  76,436,40 _ 34,376,42

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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PLUG POWER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

2014 2013 2012
Net loss attributable to the Compe $ (88,487,82) $ (62,669,68) $ (31,862,45)
Other comprehensive (loss) incon

Foreign currency translation (loss) g — (106,609 75,66¢
Comprehensive los $ (88,487,82) $ (62,776,28) $ (31,786,78)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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December 31
2011

Net loss
attributable
to the
Company

Other
comprehen:
income

Stock based
compensati

Public offering
common
stock, ne

December 31
2012

Net loss
attributable
to the
Company

Other
comprehen:
loss

Stock based
compensati

Public
offering,
common
stock, net(1

Exercise of
warrants(2)

Stock dividens

December 31
2013

Net loss
attributable
to the
Company

Stock based
compensati

Public
offerings,
common
stock, net(3

Exercise of
warrants(4.

Stock dividen

Shares issuec
for
acquisition

Conversion ol
preferred
stock

Stock option
exercises

December 31
2014

PLUG POWER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

Accumulated Total

Common Stock » Other Treasury Stock Stockholders'
Additional Comprehensive

Paid-in- Accumulated (Deficit)

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Shares  Amount Deficit Equity
22,924,41 $ 229,24. $ 784,213,87 $ 928,74: 165,90t $(1,552,38) $(754,783,81) $ 29,035,66
— — — — — —  (31,862,45) (31,862,45)
— — — 75,66¢ — — — 75,66¢
530,35: 5,304 1,985,85 — — — — 1,991,15.
14,950,00 149,50( 15,640,77 — — — — 15,790,27

38,404,76 $ 384,04t $ 801,840,49 $ 1,004,41: $165,90¢ $(1,552,38) $(786,646,26) $ 15,030,30

_ _ — — — —  (62,669,68) (62,669,68)

— — — (106,60%) — — — (106,60%)
219815  21,98: 2,127 51 = = = = 2,149,49.
43101,80 431,01 9,991,40 — — — —  10,422,42
2249498 224,95  17,076,96 = = = —  17,301,91
156,85: 1,56¢ 119,55( (121,119 —
106,356,55 $1,063,56 $ 831,155,92 $ 897,80 $165,90( $(1,552,38) $(849,437,06) $ (17,872,15)

— — — — — —  (88,487,82) (88,487,82)

146,17: 1,46; 4,051,29 = = = = 4,052,76
36,502,44 365,02  153,584,35 — — — —  153,949,37
2391842 239,18  101,886,30 —  86,39. (340,38) —  101,785,10

34,23 342 155,53! — — — (155,87) —

530,50 5,30¢ 3,994,69 — — — — 4,000,001
5,521,671 55,21 1,163,14 — — — — 1,218,36!

634,51 6,34¢ 400,41 — 12581¢  (769,27) = (362,519
173,644,53 $1,736,44 $1,096,391,66 $ 897,80° 378,11( $(2,662,03) $(938,080,76) $ 158,283,11

(€

)

3

4

As a result of the 2013 public offerings discusseNote 5, Stockholders' Equity, the Company reegimet proceeds of $12,873,452, of which $2,451i1028
value was ascribed to the warrants issued in theugey 2013 public offering.

Pursuant to the exercise of warrants, additionil-acapital was increased by $5,878,146 fromisseance of 22,494,987 shares of common stock.
Additionally, paid-in capital was increased by #198,822 and warrant liability was reduced by $18,892 (the fair value of the warrants on the exserdate).

As a result of the January, March and April 2018ljmuofferings discussed in Note 5, StockholdergliBy/, the Company received net proceeds of $1656138
of which $11,773,240 in value was ascribed to therants issued in the January 2014 public offefiing associated warrants have been separatelydvahae
classified as a liability on the accompanying cdidsted balance sheet.

Pursuant to the exercise of warrants, addition@al-pacapital was increased by $18,441,730 fromissaance of 23,832,038 shares of common stock.



Additionally, paic-in capital was increased by $83,444,574 and waliaitity was reduced by $83,444,574 (the fairueabf the warrants on the exercise de

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstents.
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PLUG POWER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

2014 2013 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss attributable to the Compe
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash use

$ (88,487,82) $(62,669,68) $(31,862,45)

operating activities
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagtstents

investment in leased prope! 1,946,48 1,907,941 2,069,67.
Amortization of intangible asse 2,391,271 2,270,85! 2,306,48!
Stoclk-based compensatic 4,156,63 2,180,86! 2,001,841
Gain on sale of equity interest in joint vent — (3,234,71) —
Gain on bargain purcha (1,014,25) — —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipn 78,05¢ 65,89¢ 51,97¢
Loss on sale of leased ass — — 20,06¢
Change in fair value of common stock warrant

liability 52,259,89 37,101,81 (4,845,16)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities thal

provide (use) cash, net of effects of acquisit

Accounts receivabl (9,349,41) (2,407,67) 9,367,53!

Inventory (9,168,05) (1,855,86) (1,294,67)

Prepaid expenses and other as (7,218,98) 137,59¢ (94,447

Note receivabl 62,53" 60,75: (570,69)

Accounts payable, accrued expenses, produ

warranty reserve and other liabiliti 10,817,63 (2,140,15) 914,38t
Deferred revenu 2,746,47 1,701,54! 1,770,46.
Net cash used in operating activit (40,779,53) (26,880,81) (20,164,99)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of equity interest in joint

venture — 3,234,71 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (1,413,10) (111,03) (77,527
Purchase of ReliOn, net of cash acqu 414,00( — —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipmen 33,79: 84,25( 63,60¢

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities (965,31 3,207,93! (13,927
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Change in restricted ca — (500,00() —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 240,59¢ — —
Purchase of treasury sto (603,112) — —
Proceeds from exercise of warra 18,340,53 6,103,091 —
Proceeds from issuance of preferred s — 2,595,401 —
Preferred stock issuance ca — (224,32() —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and

warrants 176,700,00 14,807,71 17,192,50
Common stock issuance co (10,977,38) (1,934,26) (1,402,23))
Repayment of borrowings under line of cre — (3,380,83) (2,024,27))
Proceeds from finance obligati — 2,600,001 2,105,28:
Principal payments on obligations under capite

lease and finance obligatit (777,244 (698,674 (170,22}

Net cash provided by financing activiti 182,923,39 19,368,12 15,701,05
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ — (48,780) 1,02¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz 141,178,54 (4,353,53)) (4,476,839
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yei 5,026,52. 9,380,05! 13,856,89

$146,205,07 $ 5,026,520 $ 9,380,05!
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Operations
Description of Business

Plug Power Inc., or the Company, is a legdirovider of alternative energy technology foclise the design, development,
commercialization and manufacture of hydrogen &edll systems used primarily for the industrial of&d (forklift or material handling) mark
and the stationary power market.

We are focused on proton exchange membaearEM, fuel cell and fuel processing technologiasl cell/battery hybrid technologies,
and associated hydrogen storage and dispensirgginfcture from which multiple products are avddald fuel cell is an electrochemical
device that combines hydrogen and oxygen to prodlemdricity and heat without combustion. Hydrogederived from hydrocarbon fuels
such as liquid petroleum gas, or LPG, natural gagpane, methanol, ethanol, gasoline or biofueyglrbigen can also be obtained from the
electrolysis of water, or produced on-site at comsulocations through a process known as reformaBtug Power develops complete
hydrogen delivery, storage and refueling solutifmmsustomer locations.

We sell and continue to develop fuel cetiquct solutions to replace lead-acid batteriematerial handling vehicles and industrial trucks
for some of North America's largest distributiordananufacturing businesses. We are focusing oartefdbn material handling applications
(forklifts) at multi-shift high volume manufactugrand high throughput distribution sites where pnaducts and services provide a unique
combination of productivity, flexibility and envinmental benefits. Our current product line includgsnDrive, our hydrogen fueled PEM fuel
cell system providing power to material handlinfpietes; GenFuel, our hydrogen fueling delivery syst GenCare, our ongoing maintenance
program for both the GenDrive fuel cells and Getpueducts; GenKey, our turn-key solution coupliogether GenDrive, GenFuel and
GenCare, offering complete simplicity to custonteassitioning their material handling vehicles telf cell power; and ReliOn, our stationary
fuel cell solution providing scalable, modular PEMI cell power to support the backup and grid-swppower requirements of the
telecommunications, transportation, and utilitytees

We sell our products worldwide, with a paim focus on North America, through our direct proidsales force, leveraging relationships
with original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, #malr dealer networks. We are party to a jointtuembased in France with Axane, S.A.
under the name HyPulsion, to develop and sell lyehduel cell systems for the European materiatitiag market. We sell to businesses and
government agencies.

We were organized in the State of Delaveardune 27, 1997.

Unless the context indicates otherwise t¢hes "Company,” "Plug Power," "we,

and its subsidiaries.

our" or "uss used herein refers to Plug Power Inc.

Liquidity

Our cash requirements relate primarily toking capital needed to operate and grow our fassinincluding funding operating expenses,
growth in inventory to support both shipments afvneits and servicing the installed base, fundimggdrowth in our GenKey "turn-key"
solution which also includes the installation of gustomer's hydrogen infrastructure as well aweel of the hydrogen molecule, and
continued development and expansion of our prod@uis ability to achieve profitability and meetdue liquidity needs and capital
requirements will depend upon numerous factordudieg the timing and quantity of product ordersl ahipments; the timing and amount of
our operating expenses; the timing and costs okiwgrcapital needs; the timing and costs of buddin
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
1. Nature of Operations (Continued)

a sales base; the timing and costs of developingetiag and distribution channels; the timing andts of product service requirements; the
timing and costs of hiring and training producffstde extent to which our products gain marketegatance; the timing and costs of product
development and introductions; the extent of owadmg and any new research and development progemmdschanges in our strategy or our
planned activities. If we are unable to fund ouergtions without additional external financing @herefore cannot sustain future operations,
we may be required to delay, reduce and/or ceasepauations and/or seek bankruptcy protection.

We have experienced and continue to expegieegative cash flows from operations and neelmsThe Company incurred net losses
attributable to common shareholders of $88.6 mmi|li$62.8 million and $31.9 million for the yeargdded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and has an accumulated deficit oB&B&illion at December 31, 2014.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2014 was $40.8 mikidditionally, on December 31, 2014, we |
cash and cash equivalents of $146.2 million andvoeking capital of $167.0 million. This compares$#5.0 million and $11.1 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2013.

During 2014, we received gross proceedil@b.7 million from three underwritten public offggs. Net proceeds after underwriting
discounts and commissions and other estimatedafeizexpenses were $165.7 million. See Note 5 (8tddkrs' Equity) of the consolidated
financial statements for more detail. In additidaring 2014 we received $18.3 million from the of previously issued common stock
warrants.

To date, we have funded our operations qmilgnthrough public and private offerings of command preferred stock, a sale-leaseback of
our building, our previous line of credit and mdies. The Company believes that its current caabh equivalents, cash generated from futur
sales and cash generated from the exercise ohadisg warrants will provide sufficient liquiditg fund operations for at least the next twelve
months. This projection is based on our curreneetgiions regarding product sales, cost structa®h burn rate and operating assumptions.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe financial statements of Plug Power Inc.itmaholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of money markedaats with an initial term of less than three ninsnfor purposes of the consolidated
statements of cash flows, the Company considersgily-liquid debt instruments with original maitigs of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Company's cash and cash equisaeaideposited with financial institutions locaitethe U.S. and may at times exceed
insured limits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable related to product serdice arrangements are recorded when producthgmged or delivered to customers, as
appropriate. Accounts receivable related to cohtegearch and development arrangements are recasdeork is completed under the
applicable contract. Accounts receivable are statéde amount billed to customers and are ordindue between 30 and 60 days after the
issuance of the invoice. Accounts are considerddgleent when more than 90 days past due, and temé&d payment agreements have beer
granted. Receivables are reserved or written afétdan individual credit evaluation and specificemstances of the customer. The allowanc
for doubtful accounts and related receivable adeced when the amount is deemed uncollectible.fA3ecember 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cdstermined on a first-in, first-out basis, or k&dr In the case of our consignment arrangement
we do not relieve inventory until the customer hesepted the product, at which time the risks amcards of ownership have transferred. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, inventory on consighmas valued at approximately $1,611,000 and $10D08 respectively.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with estimable usefiddiare amortized over their respective estimateflibiives to their estimated residual values,
reviewed for impairment when certain triggering mgeoccur. Intangible assets consist of acquireldnelogy, customer relationships and
trademarks, and are amortized using a straightrliathod over their useful lives of 5-10 years.

Revenue Recognition
Products and Services

The Company recognizes revenue under agraagts for products and services, which may incthdesale of products and related
services, including revenue from installation, sgand maintenance, spare parts, hydrogen fuséingces, which may include hydrogen
supply as well as hydrogen fueling infrastructaneg leased units. The Company also recognizes uewamnder research and development
contracts, which are primarily cost reimbursememttacts associated with the development of PEMdek technology.

The Company enters into revenue arrangesribat may contain a combination of fuel cell sysend equipment, which may be sold, or
under a limited number of arrangements leasedstomers, installation, service, maintenance, spares, hydrogen fueling and other support
services. For these multiple deliverable arrangasyéine Company accounts for each separate ddbecas a separate unit of accounting if the
delivered item or items have value to the custoomea standalone basis. The Company considers\edaie to have standalone value if the
item is sold separately by us or another entitif thre item could be resold by the customer. ThenBany allocates revenue to each separate
deliverable based on its relative selling price. &majority of our deliverables, the Company deiges relative selling prices using its best
estimate of the selling price as vendor-specifieciive evidence and third-party evidence is gdhyenmt available for the deliverables
involved in its revenue arrangements due to a ddigkcompetitive environment in selling fuel celthnology. When
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

determining estimated selling prices, the Compaay oonsider the cost to produce the deliverabieatiticipated margin on that deliverable,
the selling price and profit margin for similar grects and services, the Company's ongoing pridimgeg)y and policies, the value of any
enhancements that have been built into the delive@nd the characteristics of the varying marketshich the deliverable is sold, as
applicable. The Company determines estimated ggtliites for deliverables in its agreements basgeithe specific facts and circumstances of
each arrangement and analyzes the estimated setlzes used for its allocation of arrangement meration of each arrangement.

Once relative selling prices are determjnied Company proportionately allocates the satesicieration to each element of the
arrangement. The allocated sales consideratioteceta fuel cell systems and equipment, spare pamts hydrogen infrastructure is recognizec
as revenue at shipment if title and risk of losgehpassed to the customer, there is persuasivereadf an arrangement, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, collection of the relatedeigable is reasonably assured, and customer @wptriteria, if any, have been successfully
demonstrated. The allocated sales consideratiateckto installation, service, maintenance, anddgeh molecule delivery is generally
recognized as revenue when completed or on a lstriig basis over the term of the contract, ag@miate.

In the case of consignment sales, the Cagngaes not recognize revenue until the customembeaepted the product, at which time the
risks and rewards of ownership have transferragptfice is fixed, and the Company has a reasomadplectation of collection upon billing.

The Company does not include a right afmrebn its products other than rights related torargty provisions that permit repair or
replacement of defective goods. The Company acdanesnticipated warranty costs at the same timaerevenue is recognized for the related
product.

The Company has also sold extended wari@ntiracts that generally provide for a five to year warranty from the date of product
installation. These types of contacts are accouitteds a separate deliverable, and accordingigmee generated from these transactions is
deferred and recognized in income over the warrpatiod, generally on a straight-line basis. Adulitilly, the Company may enter into annua
service and maintenance contracts that are billeatiny. Revenue generated from these transactsorecognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the contract.

At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2BE3Company had unbilled amounts from productserdice revenues of approximately
$616,000 and $184,000, respectively, which is idetlin other current assets in the accompanyingatiiated balance sheets. At
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Confghdeferred product and service revenues iarteunt of $11.8 million and
$9.0 million, respectively.

Research and Development Contracts

Contract accounting is used for researchdmvelopment contract revenue. The Company génetares in the cost of these programs
with cost sharing percentages ranging from 30990 5f total project costs. Revenue from time andiemia contracts is recognized on the
basis of hours expended plus other reimbursablgaircosts incurred during the period. All allowatwvork performed through the end of e
calendar quarter is billed, subject to limitatiamshe respective contracts. We expect to contimegearch and development contract work tr
directly related to our current product developneffdrts. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Comead unbilled
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

amounts from research and development contrachuevim the amount of approximately $1,047,000 ahl$000, respectively, which is
included in other current assets in the accompangamsolidated balance sheets. Unbilled amouridee¢mber 31, 2014 are expected to be
billed during the first quarter of 2015.

Product Warranty Reserve

The GenDrive contracts we enter into gdhepsiovide a one to two year product warranty tstomers from date of installation, and the
ReliOn contracts we enter into generally provide/a to five year product warranty. We currentlyimstte the costs of satisfying warranty
claims based on an analysis of past experienc@m@witle for future claims in the period the revemiesecognized. Factors that affect our
warranty liability include the number of installedits, estimated material costs, estimated trared,labor costs.

Sale-leaseback transactions

Under a limited number of arrangements Gbepany provides its products and services tamousts in the form of an operating lease
that can vary in term from five to six years. Hoege specific transactions, the Company will cotepdesaldeaseback for the related assets
financial institution for similar five to six yeaerms. The Company accounts for sale-leasebackactions in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsl&odification (ASC) Subtopic 840-40cases—Sale-Leaseback Transactions

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are originedicorded at cost or, if acquired as part of bessrcombination, at fair value. Maintenance anc
repairs are expensed as costs are incurred. Dapogcon plant and equipment, which includes deptien on the Company's facility that is
accounted for as a financing obligation (see NdteFlnance Obligation), is calculated on the straine method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The Company records depregiatid amortization over the following estimatedfuklives:

Buildings 20 year
Building improvement: 5-20year
Software, machinery and equipmi 1-15 year

Gains and losses resulting from the salgraberty and equipment are recorded in currentatipss.
Leased Property Under Capital Lease

Leased property under capital lease igdtat the present value of minimum lease paym@ntertization expense is recorded on a
straight-line basis over 6 years, the shorter efl#fase term and the estimated useful life of f#seta Amortization expense amounted to
$516,486 and $516,487 for the years ended Decedih@014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, asdhen included in cost of service
revenue in the accompanying consolidated statenoéimigerations.

F-12




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, pkmd, equipment, and purchased intangibles sulgjerhbrtization, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notbeverable. Recoverability of assets t
held and used is measured by a comparison of tingiriga amount of an asset to estimated undiscoufiutede cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amounhafszet exceeds its estimated undiscounted fuagsteftows, an impairment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amhofithe asset exceeds the fair value of the aBa@tvalue is determined through various
valuation techniques, including discounted cast fieodels, quoted market values and third partypedeent appraisals, as considered
necessary. Assets to be disposed of and consitietédor sale would be separately presented icdinsolidated balance sheet and reported a
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value lessts to sell, and are no longer depreciated.ablets and liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale would be presentedraggig in the appropriate asset and liability seetiof the consolidated balance sheet.

Common Stock Warrant Accounting

The Company accounts for common stock wasrizn accordance with applicable accounting guidgrovided in ASC Subtopic 815-40,
Derivatives and Hedgir—Contracts in Entity's Own Equityas either derivative liabilities or as equitytmsnents depending on the specific
terms of the warrant agreement. In compliance wjithlicable securities law, registered common steakants that require the issuance of
registered shares upon exercise and do not suffigipreclude an implied right to cash settlemestaccounted for as derivative liabilities. We
currently classify these derivative warrant liai@k on the accompanying consolidated balance shset long-term liability, which is revalued
at each balance sheet date subsequent to théigstiance using the Black-Scholes pricing modieé Black-Scholes pricing model, which is
based, in part, upon unobservable inputs for wthehe is little or no market data, requires the @any to develop its own assumptions.
Changes in the fair value of the warrants are ctdlin the accompanying consolidated statemeniperations as change in fair value of
common stock warrant liability.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under thetamd liability method. Deferred tax assets #@tllities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax basis and operating loss and tax credit camydnds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities areswmesl using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recowvarsdttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in the period that includes the enactmate. A valuation allowance is recorded to
reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax a#fsietis more likely than not that such assets wibt be realized. We did not report a benefi
federal and state income taxes in the consolidaiiadcial statements as the deferred tax assetatenkefrom our net operating loss has been
offset by a full valuation allowance because inisre likely than not that the tax benefits of tle¢ operating loss carryforward will not be
realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain taxtfpes in accordance with FASB ASC No. 740-10-28pme Taxes—Overall - Recognition
The Company recognizes in its consolidated findrat&ements the impact of a tax position onhhéttposition is more likely than not to be
sustained on audit, based on the technical mdrttseqoosition.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Historically, foreign currency translatiadjustments arose from conversion of the Compdosesgn subsidiary's financial statements to
U.S. dollars for reporting purposes, and were idetlin accumulated other comprehensive income)(lnstockholders' equity (deficit) on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As dé®éer 30, 2013, the functional currency of out tamaining foreign subsidiary, Plug
Power Canada Inc., was changed to the U.S. dtilarefore these translation adjustments will n@é&roccur. Transaction gains and losses
resulting from the effect of exchange rate chamgesansactions denominated in currencies otherttia U.S. dollar give rise to realized
foreign currency transaction gains and lossesaa@dhcluded in interest and other expense in tkerapanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Research and Development
Costs incurred in research and developfetihhe Company are expensed as incurred.
Joint Venture

On February 29, 2012 we completed the ftionaof our joint venture with Axane, S.A., a subary of Air Liquide, under the name
HyPulsion (the JV). The principal purpose of theig¥ develop and sell hydrogen fuel cell systéonshe European material handling mar
Axane contributed in exchange for an initial 55%newship of the JV, subject to certain conditiong ®éntributed to the JV the right to use
our technology, including design and technologywkiimw on GenDrive systems, in exchange for anahitb% ownership of the JV. We have
not contributed any cash to the JV and we are bligated to contribute any cash or otherwise fumyg lasses of the JV.

On April 19, 2013 Axane purchased an addél 25% ownership interest in HyPulsion from trarpany for a cash purchase price of
$3.2 million (Euro 2.5 million). We now own 20% aAdane owns 80% of HyPulsion, and we will shar@@§6 of the profits from the JV. Tl
Company has the right to purchase an additional 60BtyPulsion from Axane at any time between Japda018 and January 29, 2018 at a
formula price. If the Company exercises its purehdght, Axane will have the right, at any timeweén February 1, 2018 and December 31,
2021, to require the Company to buy the remainidfp Interest at a formula price.

In addition, the Company and HyPulsion astered into an engineering service agreementrumdieh, among other things, the
Company will provide HyPulsion with engineering aedhnical services for a new fuel cell assemlslg kind manufacturing execution system
Under the service agreement, HyPulsion has pai€tmepany approximately $659,000 (Euro 500,000héaggregate for services to be
performed by the Company.

In accordance with the equity method ofoating, the Company will increase its investmarthie JV by its share of any earnings, and
decrease its investment in the JV by its sharepfi@sses. Losses in excess of the investmentaneoognized and must be restored from
future profits before we can recognize our propowie share of profits. As of December 31, 201&Gbmpany had a zero basis for its
investment in the JV.
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Redeemable Preferred Stock

On May 8, 2013, the Company entered inSeeurities Purchase Agreement with Air Liquide soant to which the Company agreed to
issue and sell 10,431 shares of the Company'ssSeriRedeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, paeve0.01 per share, for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $2.6 million (E@rmillion) in cash, as more fully discussed in N6fdRedeemable Preferred Stock. On
August 26, 2014, Air Liquide acquired 5,521,676resaf Common Stock by converting 5,200 sharesokS C Preferred Stock at the
conversion price of $0.2343. Following the convamsiAir Liquide continues to own 5,231 shares afi€3C Preferred Stock. We account for
preferred stock as temporary equity in accordaritte applicable accounting guidance in FASB ASC Tof80,Distinguishing Liabilities fron
Equity.Dividends on the redeemable preferred stock arewted for as a reduction (increase) in the nairimes (loss) attributable to common
shareholders.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company maintains employee stock-basatpensation plans, which are described more finlyote 7, Employee Benefit Plans.

Stock-based compensation represents theelated to stock-based awards granted to empdogee directors. The Company measures
stock-based compensation cost at grant date, loastird fair value of the award, and recognizestist as expense on a straight-line basis (n
of estimated forfeitures) over the option's redaiservice period.

The Company estimates the fair value aflstzased awards using a Black-Scholes valuationrem&tiock-based compensation expense i
recorded in cost of product revenue, cost of seréwenue, research and development expense &ind,sgéneral and administrative expense:
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofatipeis based on the employees' respective function.

The Company records deferred tax asset@vfards that result in deductions on the Compangtsme tax returns, based upon the amoun
of compensation cost recognized and the Compataglstary tax rate. Differences between the defeta@dhssets recognized for financial
reporting purposes and the actual tax deductioortep on the Company's income tax return are recbird additional paid-in capital if the tax
deduction exceeds the deferred tax asset or indhgolidated statements of operations if the defietax asset exceeds the tax deduction ai
additional paid-in capital exists from previous asg@ Excess tax benefits are recognized in th@geni which the tax deduction is realized
through a reduction of taxes payable. No tax beoefxpense for stock-based compensation hasrbeerded during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 since the Commeangins in a NOL position.

Per Share Amounts

Basic earnings per common share are cordpytelividing net loss attributable to common shatders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the reportargpd. Diluted earnings per share reflects themt@kdilution that could occur if securities
or other contracts to issue common stock (suchoa& sptions, unvested restricted stock, commocksitearrants, and preferred stock) were
exercised or converted into common stock or reduitehe issuance of common stock (net of any assumpurchases) that then shared in the
earnings of the Company, if any. This is computedibiding net earnings by the combination of diletcommon share equivalents, which is
comprised of shares issuable under outstandingawisirthe conversion of preferred stock, and thag2my's share-based compensation plan
and the weighted average number
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of common shares outstanding during the reportargpd. Since the Company is in a net loss positidilgommon stock equivalents would be
considered to be anti-dilutive and are, therefoa,included in the determination of diluted eagsiper share. Accordingly, basic and diluted
loss per share are the same.

The following table provides the componenftthe calculations of basic and diluted earnipgsshare:

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

Numerator:
Net loss attributable to

common shareholde $ (88,643,70) $ (62,790,80) $ (31,862,45)

Denominator
Weighted average number

common shares
outstanding 159,228,81 76,436,40 34,376,42

The dilutive potential common shares ararsarized as follows:

At December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock options outstandir 8,367,27. 4,703,32 1,986,25!
Restricted stock outstandi 473,33t 650,00: —
Common stock warrants( 4,219,44; 24,137,87 9,421,00:
Preferred stock(z 5,554,59. 10,972,85 —
Number of dilutive potential commc
shares 18,614,64 40,464,06 11,407,26
(1) In May 2011, the Company issued 7,128,563 war@as{zart of an underwritten public offering. As aui¢ of

)

additional public offerings, and pursuant to thieeff of the anti-dilution provisions of these wans the number
of warrants increased to 22,995,365. Of the wasrasued in May 2011, 22,776,023 have been exdrasef
December 31, 2014. In February 2013, the Compaueds 23,637,500 warrants as part of an underwipiidatic
offering. Of the warrants issued in February 2@18637,400 were exercised as of December 31, 20 3&nuary
2014, the Company issued 4,000,000 warrants a®part underwritten public offering. Of the warrsusued in
January 2014, none have been exercised as of Dec&hp2014. As of December 31, 2014, the remaining
4,219,442 warrants have a weighted average exegraiseof $3.84.

The preferred stock amount represents the dilygatential common shares of the Series C redeencableertible
preferred stock issued on May 16, 2013 based ondheersion price of the preferred stock as of Dewer 31,
2014. Of the 10,431 preferred shares issued in 204\3, 5,200 had been converted to common stock as o
December 31, 201
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Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements ef@ompany have been prepared in conformity with geBerally accepted accounting
principles, which require management to make estéismand assumptions that affect the reported arnaifigssets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datthefconsolidated financial statements and thertep@mounts of revenues and expenses durin
the reporting period. Actual results could diffesrh those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been maqeity period financial statements to conform te thurrent period presentation. These
reclassifications did not impact the results ofragiens or net cash flows in the periods presented.

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluates subsequent evettie date of the balance sheet as well as conditi@misarise after the balance sheet date but
before the consolidated financial statements atgeid. The effects of conditions that existed abtlance sheet date are recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. Events and tiongi arising after the balance sheet date butreafe consolidated financial statements are
issued are evaluated to determine if disclosuregsired to keep the consolidated financial statesnfrfom being misleading. To the extent
such events and conditions exist, if any, disclesare made regarding the nature of events arektmated financial effects for those events
and conditions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU NdL£209,Revenue from Contracts with Customengich requires an entity to recognize the
amount of revenue to which it expects to be ewtitter the transfer of promised goods or servicesustomers. The ASU will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAglien it becomes effective. The new standard icgéfe for the Company on January 1,
2017. Early application is not permitted. The stddoermits the use of either the retrospectiveuanulative effect transition method. The
Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-@9hmve on its consolidated financial statememtd eelated disclosures. The Company ha
not yet selected a transition method nor has érd@hed the effect of the standard on its ongoingricial reporting.

3. Acquisition of ReliOn, Inc.

On April 2, 2014, the Company completedahquisition of ReliOn, Inc. ("ReliOn") for an aggyate purchase price of $4,000,000. The
Company acquired substantially all of the asseRadifOn, including patents, technology and othéangible assets, equipment and other
tangible assets. ReliOn is a developer of hydrdgehcell stack technology based in Spokane, Wagbm As consideration, the Company
issued 530,504 shares of common stock, and asscenzih specified liabilities of ReliOn. The totalrchase price of $4,000,000 is based on
the issuance of 530,504 shares of Plug Power constogh at the closing price of the Company's stwthkpril 1, 2014 of $7.54.
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3. Acquisition of ReliOn, Inc. (Continued)

The following table summarizes the allogatof the purchase price to the estimated fairevalithe net assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 414,00
Accounts receivabl 315,97!
Inventory 5,161,22
Prepaid expenses and other as 88,89
Property and equipme 162,99(
Identifiable intangible: 980,00t
Accounts payable and accrued expel (1,682,78)
Note payable (426,049
Total Net Assets Acquire $ 5,014,25
Gain on bargain purcha (1,014,25)
Acquisition consideratio $ 4,000,001

The fair value of the acquired net asseteeded the purchase consideration, and therefgagaon bargain purchase of $1,014,256 was
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2014.

The results of operations of ReliOn aresobidated in the Company's results of operationgriméng on the acquisition date of April 2,
2014. The following unaudited pro forma financigiarmation for the years ended December 31, 20842843 present the consolidated
operations data of the Company as if the ReliOmuia@ttpn had been made on January 1, 2013. Theditealupro forma financial information
is provided for informational purposes only andsloet project the Company's results of operationsufiy future period.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Revenue $ 65,361,49 $ 31,190,84
Net loss attributable to the Compe (88,925,97) (69,645,88)
Basic and diluted loss per sh: $ (0.56) $ (0.90)

4. Inventory
Inventory as of December 31, 2014 and Déxeer81, 2013 consisted of the following:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.

Raw materials and suppli $ 18,501,38 $ 8,881,59
Work-in-process 237,26¢ 219,32
Finished good 5,996,94 1,305,39

$ 24,735,60 $ 10,406,32

5. Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock

The Company has one class of common sfokvalue $.01 per share. Each share of the Congpeommon stock is entitled to one vote
on all matters submitted to stockholders. Thereswer
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173,266,416 and 106,190,652 shares of common staskanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ctgely.
Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 5.0 million ebanf preferred stock, par value $.01 per share.ddmpany's certificate of incorporation
provides that shares of preferred stock may bedk&om time to time in one or more series. The Gany's Board of Directors is authorizec
fix the voting rights, if any, designations, powegwseferences, qualifications, limitations andniesbns thereof, applicable to the shares of eac
series.

The Company has authorized Series A Juranticipating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par v@ilg per share. As of December 31, 201
and 2012, there were no shares of Series A Juaiticpating Cumulative Preferred Stock issued ami$tanding.

2014 Public Offerings

On April 30, 2014, we completed an undetteni public offering of 22,600,000 shares of comratatk. The shares were sold at $5.50 pe
share for gross proceeds of $124,300,000. Thenetgbroceeds to Plug Power from the April 2014liputffering were $116,443,375.

On March 11, 2014, we completed an undéevripublic offering of 3,902,440 shares of commstutk. The shares were sold at $5.74 pe
share for gross proceeds of $22,400,006. The shamesplaced with a single institutional investbine total net proceeds to Plug Power from
the March 2014 public offering were approximate®i $808,987.

On January 15, 2014 we completed an unditewmpublic offering of 10,000,000 shares of conmnstock and accompanying warrants to
purchase 4,000,000 shares of common stock. Theshad the warrants were sold together in a fixaaination, with each combination
consisting of one share of common stock and 0.40wérrant to purchase one share of common stoekpace of $3.00 per fixed combinati
for gross proceeds of $30,000,000. The securite®g wlaced with a single institutional investord @me subject to weighted average anti-
dilution provisions in the event of issuance ofitiddal shares of common stock and certain otheditmns, as further described in the wari
agreement. Additionally, in the event of a sal¢hef Company, and under certain conditions, eachawaholder has the right to require the
Company to purchase such holder's warrants ata gatermined using a Black-Scholes option priaioglel. The warrants have an exercise
price of $4.00 per share, are immediately exer&ésabd will expire on January 15, 2019. The totlproceeds to Plug Power from the Jan
2014 public offering was approximately $27,970,256.

2013 Public Offerings

On September 16, 2013, the Company contplateunderwritten public offering of 18,600,000r&3a0f common stock. The shares were
sold at $0.54 per share. Net proceeds, after unidergvdiscounts and commissions and other feeseapeénses payable by Plug Power were
$9,151,221. The Company also sold an addition@®000 shares of common stock at $0.54 per sharsuant to the underwriter's exercist
its over-allotment option in connection with thep&smber 16, 2013 underwritten public offering, fésg in additional net proceeds to Plug
Power of $1,408,671. The total net proceeds fraerSbptember 2013 public offering to Plug Power vegngroximately $10.6 million.

On February 20, 2013, the Company complatednderwritten public offering of 18,910,000 sfsaof common stock and warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 18,910,000 shares of corstock. The shares
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and warrants in the underwritten public offeringgeold as a fixed combination, with each combarationsisting of one share of common
stock and one warrant to purchase one share of constock at a price to the public of $0.15 perdixembination. The underwriter also
purchased 2,836,500 warrants pursuant to the eeeotiits over-allotment option. These warrantsshav exercise price of $0.15 per share, ar
immediately exercisable and will expire on Febru2®y 2018. The warrants are subject to weightedagecantidilution provisions in the eve
of issuance of additional shares of common stockcamtain other conditions, as further describethénwarrant agreement. Additionally, in
event of a sale of the Company, and under certmditions, each warrant holder has the right tairegthe Company to purchase such holc
warrants at a price determined using a Bl&ckoles option pricing model. The underwriter wias granted an additional 1,891,000 warran
$0.18 per share. These warrants are exercisalfelomary 13, 2014 and will expire on February TB,& Net proceeds, after underwriting
discounts and commissions and other fees and exp@ayable by Plug Power, were approximately $1llibom On February 21, 2013, the
Company sold 2,801,800 additional shares of comsback, pursuant to the underwriter's exercisesobuerallotment option in connection
with the public offering, resulting in additiona¢inproceeds to the Company of approximately $0lHomi The total net proceeds from the
February 2013 public offerings to Plug Power werpraximately $2.3 million.

2012 Public Offerings

On March 28, 2012, the Company completedraterwritten public offering of 13,000,000 shamé&s common stock. The shares were
sold at $1.15 per share. Net proceeds, after undergvdiscounts and commissions and other feeseapénses payable by Plug Power were
$13,704,745.

On March 29, 2012, the Company sold 1,980 #&dditional shares of common stock at $1.15 Ipares pursuant to the underwriter's
exercise of its over-allotment option in connectigth the March 28, 2012 underwritten public offeyj resulting in additional net proceeds to
Plug Power of $2,085,525.

6. Redeemable Preferred Stock

On May 8, 2013, the Company entered inf@eurities Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agme&Enhwith Air Liquide Investissements
d'Avenir et de Demonstration ("Air Liquide"), puesut to which the Company agreed to issue andas@lirtLiquide 10,431 shares of the
Company's Series C Redeemable Convertible PrefStmak, par value $0.01 per share (the "Seriese®Red Stock"), for an original issue
price of $2,595,400 in cash. Net proceeds, aftes éd expenses paid by the Company, were $2,371,08

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreenfienso long as Air Liquide holds any shares of & Preferred Stock, Air Liquide shall be
entitled to designate one director to the CompaBgard of Directors. In the event the Series Cdtrefl Stock is converted into shares of
Common Stock and Air Liquide continues to holdeasit 5% of the outstanding shares of Common StbitledCompany, or 50% of the shares
of Common Stock held by Air Liquide on an as-comeebasis immediately following the issuance of$legies C Preferred Stock, Air Liquide
shall continue to be entitled to designate onectbireto the Company's Board of Directors. The PasehAgreement also provides Air Liquide
with the right to participate in certain future @gdinancings by the Company.

The Series C Preferred Stock ranks seaitivra Common Stock with respect to rights uporlitheédation, dissolution or winding up of tl
Company. In the event of any voluntary or involuptiquidation, dissolution or winding up of the @pany, or other deemed liquidation
event, as defined in the Securities Purchase Ageaerthe holders of the Series C Preferred Stotlbeientitled to be paid an amount per
share equal to the greater of (i) the originalésgrice, plus any accrued but unpaid dividendsiothé amount per share that would have beer
payable had all shares of Series C Preferred $teek converted to shares of common stock immediptedr to such liquidation event.
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The Series C Preferred Stock is entitledeteive dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, basdtie original issue price of $2,595,400,
payable in equal quarterly installments in casmahares of Common Stock, at the Company's opGoiginally, the Series C Preferred Stock
could be converted into shares of Common Stock,cainversion price equal to $0.248794 per shavkir dfiquide's option, (1) on or after
May 8, 2014 or (2) upon any liquidation, dissolatir winding up of the Company, any sale, constitidiaor merger of the Company resulting
in a change of control, or any sale or other transf all or substantially all of the assets of @@mpany. The number of shares of common
stock was to be determined by dividing the origisalie price of $2,595,400 by the conversion priceffect at the time the shares are
converted.

The Series C Preferred Stock has weightedage anti-dilution protection. Therefore, theansion price is subject to adjustment in the
event the Company issues additional shares of constazk for a consideration per share less thasénies C conversion price in effect
immediately prior to such issue. Upon this occuregithe conversion price shall be reduced to a&platermined in accordance with a
prescribed formula. Accordingly, with the exercigel 8,846,400 warrants at $0.15 and 1,891,000 wema $0.18 occurring after the close of
the redeemable preferred stock sale, the Seriggférred Stock conversion price was adjusted frOr248794 per share to $0.2343 per share

On August 26, 2014, Air Liquide acquire8Zl,676 shares of Common Stock by converting 5s?@@es of Series C Preferred Stock at
the conversion price of $0.2343. Air Liquide conts to own 5,231 shares of Series C Preferred Stock

The Series C Preferred Stock may not beenebd by the Company until May 8, 2016. After thate, the Series C Preferred Stock ma
redeemed by the holders of the Series C Prefetaak 8r the Company. If redeemed by the holderyéldemption price will be equal to the
Series C Preferred Stock original issue price pares plus any accruing but unpaid dividends.demmed at the election of the Company, the
redemption price for shares of Series C PrefertedkSshall be a per share price equal to the greai@) the Series C Preferred Stock original
issue price per share, plus any Series C accruudedds accrued but unpaid thereon and (ii) thirenferket value of a single share of Series C
Preferred Stock as of the date of the redemption.

The Series C Preferred Stock votes togetfiterthe Common Stock on an as-converted basallaonatters. The shares of Series C
Preferred Stock were issued in a private placemesnpt from registration pursuant to Section 4€2he Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

7. Employee Benefit Plans
Stock Option Plan
2011 Stock Option and Incentive Plan

On May 12, 2011, the Company's stockholdproved the 2011 Stock Option and Incentive Rtz 2011 Plan). The 2011 Plan prov
for the issuance of up to a maximum number of shaf@ommon stock equal to the sum of (i) 1,000,@0@s (ii) the number of shares of
common stock underlying any grants pursuant t@01l Plan or the Plug Power Inc. 1999 Stock Omiodh Incentive Plan that are forfeited,
canceled, repurchased or are terminated (otherih&xercise). The shares may be issued pursuatddk options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock awards and certain other edudgtyed awards granted to employees, directors arslitants of the Company. No grants ma
made under the 2011 Plan after May 12, 2021. On M&ay012, the stockholders approved an amendroghet2011 Plan, to increase the
number of shares of the Company's common
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stock authorized for issuance under the 2011 Ptan £..0 million to 6.5 million. On July 23, 2014t stockholders approved an amendme
the 2011 Plan, to increase the number of sharfedfompany's common stock authorized for issuander the 2011 Plan from 6.5 million
17.0 million. For the years ended December 31, 22043, and 2012, the Company recorded expensgpodeimately $4.2 million,

$2.2 million, and $2.0 million respectively, in agection with its share based payment awards.

At December 31, 2014, there were approxhgad.4 million options granted and outstanding &itimillion options available to be issued
under the 2011 Plan. Options for employees issundénthis plan generally vest in equal annual Imstnts over three years and expire ten
years after issuance. Options granted to membedtedoard generally vest one year after issuahaelate, options granted under the 2
Plan have vesting provisions ranging from one tedtyears in duration and expire ten years afselaisce.

Compensation cost associated with emplsy@ek options represented approximately $3,374¢0@0e total sharéased payment exper
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014Cbinepany estimates the fair value of stock optisisgia Black-Scholes valuation model,
and the resulting fair value is recorded as comgu@ns cost on a straight-line basis over the optiesting period. Key inputs and assumptions
used to estimate the fair value of stock optiotuihe the grant price of the award, the expecteoperm, volatility of the Company's stock,
an appropriate risk-free rate, and the Companyldeiid yield. Estimates of fair value are not inted to predict actual future events or the
value ultimately realized by employees who receigeity awards, and subsequent events are not thaiaaf the reasonableness of the orig
estimates of fair value made by the Company. Tharaptions made for purposes of estimating fairalnder the Black-Scholes model for
the 4,246,000, 3,090,900 and 78,400 options gratuedg the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h2| respectively, were as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Dividend yield: 0% 0% 0%
Expected term of options
(years): 6 6 6
Risk free interest ratt 1.77%- 1.94% 0.93%-1.70% 0.80%- 1.16%
Volatility: 107%- 114% 92%- 107% 80%

The Company's estimate of an expected mp¢ion was calculated in accordance with the siieglimethod for calculating the expected
term assumption. The estimated stock price vahatilias derived from the Company's actual histaicls prices over the past six years, which
represents the Company's best estimate of expeotatility.
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A summary of stock option activity for tiiear December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Instrinsic

Shares Price Terms Value

Options outstanding at December 31, 2 4,703,320 $ 3.22 8.7
Granted 4,246,00 4.8¢
Exercisec (417,85)) 0.97
Forfeited (143,05) 5.2t
Expired (21,150 77.2:
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 8,367,27 $ 3.9¢ 8.7 7,865,23
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 2,266,60 5.1€ 7.C 4,895,87
Options unvested at December 31, 2 6,100,66. $ 3.4¢ 9.2 2,989,322

The weighted average grant date fair vafuaptions granted during the years ended Dece®ibhe2014, 2013 and 2012 was $4.05, $0.32
and $0.83, respectively. As of December 31, 20ieretwas approximately $15,252,000 of unrecognimeapensation cost related to stock
option awards to be recognized over the next theeges. The total fair value of stock options thested during the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 was approximately $3,374,000 and4$1080, respectively.

Restricted stock awards generally vestjura¢installments over a period of one to threegdRestricted stock awards are valued base
the closing price of the Company's common stoctherdate of grant, and compensation cost is redavdea straight-line basis over the share
vesting period. The Company recorded expense abappately $84,000 associated with its restrictieatls awards in 2014. Additionally, as
December 31, 2014, there was $265,000 of unrecedrmampensation cost related to restricted sto@tdsmo be recognized over the next
three years.

A summary of restricted stock activity foe year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Aggregate
Instrinsic
Shares Value
Unvested restricted stock at December 31, ¢ 650,00:
Granted 40,00(
Vested (216,66¢)
Unvested restricted stock at December 31, ¢ 473,33t $ 1,420,00:

401(k) Savings & Retirement Plan

The Company offers a 401(k) Savings & Retient Plan to eligible employees meeting certagaagl service requirements. This plan
permits participants to contribute 100% of thelasg up to the maximum allowable by the InternavBnue Service regulations. Participants
are immediately vested in their voluntary contribns plus actual earnings or less actual lossesdhe Participants are vested in the
Company's matching contribution based on yearemwice completed. Participants are fully vestedrupompletion of three years of service.
During 2002, the Company began funding its matclkimgtribution in common stock. Accordingly, the Quemy has issued 74,863, 1,319,914
and 403,579 shares of common stock to the Plug Piowe401(k) Savings & Retirement Plan during 202@13 and 2012, respectively.
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The Company's expense for this plan, inolgithe issuance of shares, was approximately $867$371,000 and $436,000 for years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respeactivel

Non-Employee Director Compensation

Each non-employee director is paid an ahratainer for their services. The Company gramé@11 shares of stock to non-employee
directors as compensation for the year ended DeeeBih 2014. All common stock issued is fully velsté the time of issuance and is value
fair market value on the date of issuance. The Gays expense for this plan was approximately $8Rlfor the year ended December 31,
2014.

8. Note Receivable

On May 25, 2012, we executed a $663,358sory Note with Forem Energy Group, maturing osyN25, 2022. This note is unsecured
and bears interest at an annual rate of 2.9%. Aaugly, receivables relating to this agreemenhim amount of $447,408 and $67,667 have
been recorded as note receivable and current pasfioote receivable (prepaid expenses and othregrdassets), respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of Dere®d, 2014, and $509,945 and $65,735 have beerdes as note receivable and
current portion note receivable (prepaid expenadsogher current assets), respectively, in thermpamying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2013. The carrying amounts reporied@mnsidered to approximate fair value.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at DecemtePB14 and 2013 consist of the following:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Land $ 90,00 $ 90,00(
Buildings 15,332,23 15,332,23
Building improvement: 5,031,80: 4,923,82
Software, machinery and equipm 11,396,62 10,658,23
31,850,66 31,004,29
Less accumulated depreciati (26,538,75) (25,726,62)
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 531190 $ 5,277,66

Depreciation expense related to propetgntmand equipment was $1.4 million, $1.4 millioxdes1.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

10. Capital Lease

Leased property under capital lease at dbee 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 consists dbtlosving:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Leased property under capital le: $ 3,098,92. $ 3,098,92.
Less accumulated depreciati (1,162,09) (645,609
Leased property under capital lease, $ 1,936,821 $ 2,453,31.
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On March 27, 2013, the Company completsdle-leaseback transaction of its property locatéd68 Albany Shaker Road, Latham, New
York, for an aggregate sale price of $4,500,00Qyluth $2,750,000 was received in cash at closity$l,750,000 is receivable with 5%
annual interest, over 15 years in equal monthlialiments of $13,839. Although the property waslsoid the Company has no legal
ownership of the facility, the Company was prol&tifrom recording the transaction as a sale beaafusmntinuing involvement with the
property. Accordingly, the sale has been accoufateds a financing transaction, which requiresGoenpany to continue reporting the build
as an asset and to record a financing obligatiothi®sale price. Liabilities relating to this agmeent of $2,426,028 and $66,303 have been
recorded as finance obligation and current poffiilsance obligation (other current liabilities), pestively, in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014.

In connection with the sale-leaseback tatisn, the Company also entered into an agreewigimthe buyer, pursuant to which the
Company leases from the buyer a portion of the mesrsold for a term of 15 years. The Company'aneing future minimum payments un
the 15 year lease are as follows:

2015 $ 459,56t
2016 459,56t
2017 459,56
2018 486,46
2019 494,911
Thereafte 4,254,40!
Total future minimum financing obligation payme $ 6,614,48
Less interes 2,508,41
Present value of future minimum financing obligatfmayment: $ 4,106,07.

As part of the terms of the transactioe, @ompany issued a standby letter of credit td#reefit of the landlord/lessor that can be drawn
by the beneficiary in the event of default on thaske by Plug Power. The standby letter totals $800and is 100% collateralized by cash
balances of the Company. The standby letter isvahke for a period of ten years and can be car@ilpart or in full if certain covenants are
met and maintained by the Company. Accordinglygfd8ecember 31, 2014 and 2013, $500,000 has beerdex as restricted cash in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

12. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, consisting of acquiesthhology, customer relationships and trademarksamortized using the straight-line method
over their useful lives of five to ten years.

F-25




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
12. Intangible Assets (Continued)

The gross carrying amount and accumulateattization of the Company's acquired identifiabkangible assets as of December 31, 201
are as follows:

Weighted
Average
Amortization Gross Carrying Accumulated
Period Amount Amortization Total
Acquired technolog 8 years $ 17,696,83 $ (16,539,68) $ 1,157,15:
Customer relationshiy 8 years 1,260,001 (977,83) 282,16
Trademark 5 years 60,00( (9,000 51,00(

$ 19,016,83 $ (17,526,51) $ 1,490,311

The gross carrying amount and accumulatearization of the Company's acquired identifiaibkangible assets as of December 31, 201
are as follows:

Weighted
Average
Amortization Gross Carrying Accumulated
Period Amount Amortization Total
Acquired technolog' 8 years $ 17,036,83 $ (14,301,90) $ 2,734,92
Customer relationshiy 8 years 1,000,001 (833,33) 166,66

$ 18,036,83 $ (15,135724) $ 2,901,59

The change in the gross carrying amouth@facquired technology, customer relationshipd,teademarks from December 31, 2013 to
December 31, 2014 is due to the acquisition of@Reli

Amortization expense for acquired idenkfaintangible assets for the years ended DeceB1het014, 2013, and 2012 was $2.4 million,
$2.3 million, and $2.3 million, respectively. Estited amortization expense for subsequent yeassfidlaws:

2015 $ 807,81¢
2016 170,00!
2017 170,00!
2018 170,00
2019 62,00(
Thereaftel 110,50(
Total $ 1,490,31!

13. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2014 @8 Gonsist of:

2014 2013
Accrued payroll and compensation related ¢ $ 2,517,32° $ 1,531,17!
Accrued dealer commissions and customer rel 621,34( 235,69(
Accrued accounts payak 5,610,68! 1,301,90!
Total $ 8,749,351 $ 3,068,77.

F-26




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
14. Fair Value Measurements

The Company complies with the provision§AGB ASC Topic No. 82(Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu(ASC 820), in
measuring fair value and in disclosing fair valueasurements. ASC 820 defines fair value, estalsliafeamework for measuring fair value
and expands disclosures about fair value measutsmemjuired under other accounting pronouncemeaisvalue, as defined in ASC 820, is
an exit price, representing the amount that woelddzeived to sell an asset or paid to transfebdity in an orderly transaction between
market participants. Fair value measurements alsect the assumptions market participants woulingricing an asset or liability based on
the best information available. Assumptions incltiierisks inherent in a particular valuation téghe (such as a pricing model) and/or the
risks inherent in the inputs to the model.

ASC 820 discusses valuation techniques) asdhe market approach (comparable market prites)ncome approach (present value of
future income or cash flow), and the cost apprqaokt to replace the service capacity of an agseptacement cost) and utilizes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuattenhniques used to measure fair value into threadlevels. The following is a brief descript
of those three levels:

Level 1—Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted pricestive markets for assets or liabilities ideatito those to be reported at fair
value. An active market is a market in which trantigeas occur for the item to be fair valued withifient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2—Level 2 inputs are inputs other than qugtedes included within Level 1. Level 2 inputs ateservable either directly or
indirectly. These inputs include: (a) Quoted prifmssimilar assets or liabilities in active marketb) Quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ap¢ active, such as when there are few transactartbe asset or liability, the prices are
not current, price quotations vary substantiallgratvme or in which little information is releaspdblicly; (c) Inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or Itgb#dind (d) Inputs that are derived principallyrfrer corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

Level 3—Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputsaforasset or liability. These inputs should be weatktermine fair value only when
observable inputs are not available. Unobservaigets should be developed based on the best infamavailable in the
circumstances, which might include internally geted data and assumptions being used to pricessiat ar liability.

When determining the fair value measuresértassets or liabilities required or permittede recorded at and/or marked to fair value,
the Company considers the principal or most adgguas market in which it would transact and considgsumptions that market participant
would use when pricing the asset or liability. Wiparssible, the Company looks to active and obségvalrkets to price identical assets. W
identical assets are not traded in active markie¢sCompany looks to market observable data foil@irassets. Nevertheless, certain assets al
not actively traded in observable markets and tha@any must use alternative valuation techniqueketive a fair value measurement.
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The following tables summarize the basedu® measure certain financial assets at fairevatua recurring basis in the consolidated
balance sheets:

Basis of Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Iltems Inputs Inputs
Balance at December 31, 201 Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Common stock warrant liabilit $ 9,418,41. $ — 3 — $ 9,418,41.
Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Items Inputs Inputs
Balance at December 31, 201 Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Common stock warrant liabilit $ 28,829,84 $ — 3 — $ 28,829,84

The following tables show reconciliatiorfalee beginning and ending balances for assetsumedst fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (i.e. Level 3):

Fair Value
Measurement
Using Significant
Unobservable

Common stock warrant liability Inputs
Beginning of perio—January 1, 201 $ 28,829,84
Change in fair value of common stock warre 52,259,89
Issuance of common stock warra 11,773,24
Exercise of common stock warral (83,444,57)
Fair value of common stock warrant liability at Retber 31,
2014 $ 9,418,41.
Fair Value
Measurement

Using Significant
Unobservable

Common stock warrant liability Inputs
Beginning of perio—January 1, 201 $ 475,82!
Change in fair value of common stock warre 37,101,81
Issuance of common stock warra 2,451,02i
Exercise of common stock warral (11,198,82)
Fair value of common stock warrant liability at Betber 31,

2013 $ 28,829,84

The following summarizes the valuation t@glie for assets measured and recorded at faievalu

Common stock warrant liability (Level 3)For our common stock warrants, fair value is Has®the Black-Scholes pricing model which
is based, in part, upon unobservable inputs fockvttere is little or no market data, requiring @@mpany to develop its own assumptions.

The Company used the following assumptfong#s common stock warrants issued on Januar2@04. The risk-free interest rate for
January 20, 2014 (issuance date) and Decembef34,2as
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1.65% and 1.35%, respectively. The volatility of tiharket price of the Company's common stock foudey 20, 2014 and December 31, 201«
was 107.6% and 119.2%, respectively. The expeatedhge term of the warrants used for January 204 20d December 31, 2014 was
5.0 years and 4.0 years, respectively.

The Company used the following assumptfon&s common stock warrants issued on Februan2@@3. The risk-free interest rate for
February 20, 2013 (issuance date), December 3B &0d December 31, 2014 was 0.85%, 1.14% and 1.@&%ectively. The volatility of the
market price of the Company's common stock for &afyr 20, 2013, December 31, 2013, and Decembe&t@4 was 102.0%, 99.0% and
126.2%, respectively. The expected average tereoivarrants used for February 20, 2013, Decembe2(@®L3 and December 31, 2014 was
5.0 years, 4.1 years and 3.1 years, respectively.

The Company used the following assumptfong#s common stock warrants issued on May 31,120he risk-free interest rate for
May 31, 2011 (issuance date), December 31, 20B3Dacember 31, 2014 was 0.75%, 0.52% and 0.21%ectsgely. The volatility of the
market price of the Company's common stock for I[day2011, December 31, 2013 and December 31, 20$PwW.4%, 119.3% and 136.6%,
respectively. The expected average term of theamgsrused for May 31, 2011, December 31, 2013 awti@ber 31, 2014 was 2.4 years,
2.4 years and 1.4 years, respectively.

There was no expected dividend yield ferwarrants granted. If factors change and diffeasstimptions are used, the warrant liability
and the change in estimated fair value could benadlly different. Generally, as the market prid@or common stock increases, the fair value
of the warrant increases, and conversely, as thikeharice of our common stock decreases, thestdire of the warrant decreases. Also, a
significant increase in the volatility of the markeice of the Company's common stock, in isolatimauld result in a significantly higher fair
value measurement; and a significant decreaselatiity would result in a significantly lower fairalue measurement.

15. Income Taxes

The components of loss before income taxeisthe provision for income taxes for the yeadeernDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ar
as follows:

Loss before income taxes:

2014 2013 2012
United State: $ (87,458,00) $ (61,730,00) $ (30,399,00)
Foreign (1,354,00)  (1,350,00) (1,463,001

$ (88,812,00) $ (63,080,00) $ (31,862,00)

Income tax benefit:

2014 2013 2012

United State: $ — $ — $ —
Foreign (325,000 (410,000 —
$ (325,000 $ (410,000 $ —
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15. Income Taxes (Continued)

The significant components of U.S. defeirembme tax expense (benefit) for the years endsteBber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as

follows:

Deferred tax (benefit) expen

Net operating loss carryforwa
(generated) expire

Valuation allowance increase
(decrease

Provision for income taxe

The significant components of foreign defdrincome tax expense (benefit) for the years écember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are 8

follows:

Deferred tax expense (bene

Net operating loss carryforwa
expired (generatec

Valuation allowance (decrease)
increase

Provision for income taxe

2014

2013 2012

$ (4,282,00) $ (3,209,00) $ 10,661,00

(8,974,001

13,256,00

(6,536,001

26,924,00

9,745000  (37,585,00)

$

— $

— $

2014

2013

2012

$ 194,000 $ 1,406,000 $ (1,041,000

625,00(

(819,00()

(15,000

(79,000

(1,391,00)  1,120,00

$

$

— $

The Company's effective income tax ratéedifd from the federal statutory rate as follows:

U.S. Federal statutory tax re

Deferred state taxes, net of federal ber

Common stock warrant liabilit
Gain on Hypulsion transactic
Bargain purchase ge—ReliOn
Other, ne

Change to uncertain tax positic
Foreign tax rate differenti
Expiring attribute carryforwar

Adjustments to open deferred tax bala

2014 2013

2012

Writeoff of tax attributes due to imposition of

Section 382 limitatior
Change in valuation allowan:

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagyimounts of certain assets and liabilities for

financial reporting and the amounts used for incoaxe

(B5.0% (35.0%

1.2% (1.9%
20.6%  20.6%
0.0% (1L.8%
0.4%  0.0%
0.1%  0.1%
0.9% (1.9%
0.2%  0.2%
0.8%  2.2%
0.0%  (0.9%

0.C% 1.5%
15.&%  14.5%

(35.0%
(3.9%
(5.9%

0.C%
0.C%
0.1%
(1.6%
0.5%
0.C%
(5.6%

165.7%
(115.9%

©0.4% (0.6%

0.C%
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purposes. Significant components of the Compareferced tax assets and liabilities as of DecembeP314 and 2013 are as follows:

Foreign Years endec

U.S. Years ended December 3 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013

Intangible asset $ — $ 59,00 $ 1,269,000 $ 999,00(
Deferred revenu 4,492,00 3,425,001 — —
Other reserves and accru 1,492,001 1,253,00!I — —
Tax credit carryforward — — 78,00( 84,00(
Property, plant and equipme 1,624,001 1,450,001 464,00( 504,00(
Amortization of stock-based

compensatiol 10,623,00 9,183,001 — —
Capitalized research &

development expenditur 12,816,00 13,775,00 4,777,001 5,195,00i
Net operating loss carryforwar 18,857,00 9,883,00! 2,931,001 3,556,00!
Total deferred tax ass 49,904,00 39,028,00 9,519,001 10,338,00
Valuation allowanct (40,002,00) (26,746,00) (9,519,00)  (10,338,00)
Net deferred tax asse $ 9,902,000 $ 12,282,00 $ — 3 —
Intangible asset $ (335,000 $ — $ — $ —
Non-employee stock based

compensatiol (1,556,00) (1,556,00i) — —
Section 382 recognized built in Ic (8,011,000  (10,726,00) —
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (9,902,000 $ (12,282,00) $ — 3 —
Net $ — $ — $ — 3 —

$1.4 million of deferred tax assets andedefd tax liabilities are included within Other NGuirrent Assets and Other Current Liabilities,
respectively, at December 31, 2014.

The Company has recorded a valuation alhm&aas a result of uncertainties related to thizagion of its net deferred tax asset, at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 of approximately $49Hmand $37.1 million, respectively. A reconaition of the current year change in
valuation allowance is as follows:

Total U.S. Foreign

Increase in valuation allowance for current year

increase in net operating loss $ 8,140,000 $ 8,974,000 $ (834,000
Increase in valuation allowance for current yedr ne

increase in deferred tax assets other than net

operating losse: 4,647,001 4,282,001 365,00(

Decrease in valuation allowance as a result oidare

currency fluctuatior (829,000 — (829,000
Increase in valuation allowance due to current yeal

change of deferred tax assets as the result of

uncertain tax positions 479,00( — 479,00(
Net increase (decrease) in valuation allowe $ 12,437,000 $ 13,256,000 $ (819,001

The deferred tax assets have been offsatfolf valuation allowance because it is moreljikban not that the tax benefits of the net
operating loss carryforwards and other deferrecatsets may
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not be realized. Included in the valuation alloweat December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 ataillion of deferred tax assets
resulting from the exercise of employee stock apjavhich upon subsequent realization of the tavefies, will be allocated directly to paid-in
capital.

Before the imposition of IRC Section 38aitations described below, at December 31, 20klCtbmpany has unused federal and stai
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $#@Hion, of which $117 million was generated frohetoperations of acquired companies
prior to the dates of acquisition and $647 milliwas generated by the Company subsequent to thésaimudates and through December 31,
2014. The net operating loss carryforwards if udus#él expire at various dates from 2017 througl320

Under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Secti®, 3he use of loss carryforwards may be limitea ¢hange in ownership of a company
occurs. If it is determined that due to transadimvolving the Company's shares owned by its Bgdrshareholders a change of ownership
has occurred under the provisions of IRC Sectid & Company's federal and state net operatsgydarryforwards could be subject to
significant IRC Section 382 limitations.

Based upon IRC Section 382 studies, Se@&#hownership changes occurred in 2013, 2012 aad that resulted in $728 million of the
Company's $764 million of federal and state netafieg loss carryforwards being subject to IRC Bec882 limitations. As a result of IRC
Section 382 limitations, $715 million of the $728lion net operating loss carryforwards that areited will expire prior to utilization and
consequently, these net operating loss carryforsviralt will expire unutilized are not reflectedtire Company's gross deferred tax asset as o
December 31, 2014.

The ownership changes also resulted iunegalized built in losses per IRS Notice 2003-6bol should result in recognized built in
losses during the five year recognition periodpgraximately $40.7 million. This will translate mtinfavorable book to tax add backs in the
Company's 2014 to 2018 U.S. corporate income taxme that resulted in a gross deferred tax lighdf $8.0 million at December 31, 2014
with a corresponding reduction to the valuationwalince. This gross deferred tax liability will affcertain existing gross deferred tax assets
(i.e. capitalized research expense). This has padton the Company's current financial positiesuits of operations, or cash flows because
of the full valuation allowance.

IRC Section 382 also limits the ability ®plCompany to utilize research credit carryforwaifsproximately $15.6 million of research
credit carryforwards are subject to IRC Section B8#ations and as a result of the IRC Section B&Zations, the entire $15.6 million will
expire prior to utilization.

At December 31, 2014, the Company has uhfaeign net operating loss carryforwards of appnately $12.2 million. The net
operating loss carryforwards if unused will exgatevarious dates from 2015 through 2031. At Decerlie2014, the Company has scientific
research and experimental development expenditdi®%9.1 million available to offset future taxaleome. These expenditures have no
expiry date. At December 31, 2014, the CompanyCasdian ITC credit carryforwards of $0.5 millioradable to offset future income tax.
These credit carryforwards if unused will expirevatious dates from 2015 through 2026. Approxinya®€l.5 million of the foreign net
operating loss carryforwards and $0.4 million af anadian ITC credit carryforwards represent wgeized tax benefits and are therefore,
not reflected in the Company's deferred tax assetdf December 31, 2014.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company hasmrepatriated foreign earnings.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and erglaamount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

2014 2013 2012
Unrecognized tax benefits balance i

beginning of yea $ 1,033,000 $ 1,579,000 $ 2,046,00!
Reductions for tax positions of prior

years (465,000 (471,000 (503,000
Currency Translatio (46,000 (75,000 36,00(
Unrecognized tax benefits balance i

end of yea $ 522,000 $ 1,033,000 $ 1,579,001

The Company recognizes accrued interespandlties related to unrecognized tax benefits @amponent of income tax expense. During
the year ended December 31, 2014 the Company rzeaga $0.4 million benefit due to a reductionriterest and penalties as a result of the
expiration of the associated statute of limitatiofise Company had $0.4 million and $0.8 millionrdkrest and penalties accrued at
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplctive

The Company files income tax returns inth8. federal jurisdiction and various state aneifin jurisdictions. In the normal course of
business the Company is subject to examinatiomking authorities. Open tax years in the U.S. rdnga 2011 to 2014, and open tax years ir
foreign jurisdictions range from 2007 to 2014. Hoer upon examination in subsequent years, if petating losses carryforwards and tax
credit carryforwards are utilized, the U.S. andefgn jurisdictions can reduce net operating loss/f@wards and tax credit carryforwards
utilized in the year being examined if they do agtee with the carryforward amount. As of Decen8ier2014, the Company was not under
audit in the U.S. or non-U.S. taxing jurisdictiohi significant changes to the amount of unrecagphiax benefits are anticipated within the
next twelve months.

16. Warranty Reserve

The GenDrive contracts we enter into gdhepsiovide a one to two year product warranty tstomers from date of installation, and the
ReliOn contracts we enter into generally providea to five year product warranty. The Company ently estimates the costs of satisfying
warranty claims based on an analysis of past espetiand provides for future claims in the perfarevenue is recognized. Factors that ¢
the warranty liability include the number of ingéal units, estimated material costs, estimatecetyand labor costs.

The following table summarizes product waty activity recorded during the years ended Dégar81, 2014 and 2013:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Beginning balanc—January ! $ 1,608,13. $ 2,671,40
Additions for ReliOn acquisitio 233,52¢ —
Additions for current period deliverit 960,89: 970,77!
Reductions for payments ma (1,491,11) (2,034,05)
Ending balan—December 3: $ 1,311,44; $ 1,608,13
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Operating Leases

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Coypas several nocancelable operating leases that expire over thiesiteyears. Minimun
rent payments under operating leases are recogaizadstraight-line basis over the term of thedeas

Future minimum lease payments under nomcalable operating leases (with initial or remainiegse terms in excess of one year) as of
December 31, 2014 are:

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 2,984,13
2016 3,005,30
2017 3,061,67
2018 3,122,82
2019 2,877,15!
2020 and thereafte 2,526,69!
Total future minimum lease paymel $ 17,577,79

Rental expense and rental income for adrating leases for the years ended December 34, 268 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
Minimum rentals $ 1,538,51. $ 769,00(
Sublease rental incon (63,247) (76,104

$ 1,475,27. $ 692,89t

Sale Leaseback transactions

Under a limited number of arrangements Gbepany provides its products and services taousts in the form of an operating lease
that can vary in term from five to six years. Hoege specific transactions, the Company will cotepdesaldeaseback for the related assets
financial institution for similar five to six yeaerms. The Company accounts for sale-leasebackactions in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 840-d8ases—Sale-Leaseback Transactions

Hydrogen Supply Agreements

The Company has entered into hydrogen guggreements that range from six to ten years, miniclude monthly service charges for
hydrogen maintenance, hydrogen infrastructure gdddgen tank rentals for use at our customerditiasi

Litigation

During the year ended December 31, 20B4Cihmpany accrued a $2.4 million liability relatitglitigation dating back to 2008 with
Soroof Trading Development Company Ltd.

F-34




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
17. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respiecteceivables exist due to the limited numberedéat customers that the Company has initial
commercial sales arrangements with and governngamtcies. To mitigate credit risk, the Company penfoappropriate evaluation of a
prospective customer's financial condition.

At December 31, 2014, four customers cosepapproximately 69.9% of the total accounts red#ésbalance, with each customer
individually representing 30.2%, 16.0%, 13.4% afdB% of total accounts receivable, respectivelyDatember 31, 2013, five customers
comprise approximately 78.3% of the total accouatgivable balance, with each customer individuafresenting 30.8%, 26.9%, 10.2%,
5.8% and 4.6% of total accounts receivable, regpsyt

For the year ended December 31, 2014, a&ctstwith two customers comprised 37.2% of totakotidated revenues, with each customer
individually representing 24.1% and 13.1% of tatahsolidated revenues, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, @ctstwith three customers comprised 33.2% of tmiakolidated revenues, with each custc
individually representing 11.6%, 11.2% and 10.4%otdl consolidated revenues, respectively.

Employment Agreements

The Company is party to employment agreesweith certain executives which provide for comgegion and certain other benefits. The
agreements also provide for severance payments aadain circumstances.

Letter of Credit

In September 2011, the Company signeder lef credit with SVB in the amount of $525,00@eTstandby letter of credit is required by
the agreement negotiated between Air Products &etni@als, Inc., or Air Products, and us to supplgrbgen infrastructure and hydrogen to
Central Grocers at their distribution center. Themeno collateral requirements associated withl#iter of credit.

18. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informath

The following represents required suppletaletisclosures of cash flow information and nosfcéinancing and investing activities which
occurred during the years ended December 31, 2048 and 2012:

2014 2013 2012
Stock-based compensation accrual impi

net $ (103,87) $ (31,379 $ (10,687
Cash paid for intere: 432,82t 474,71t 255,89¢

19. Geographic Information
The United States was the physical locabiball revenue generated for the years ended DeeeBi, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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Longlived assets, representing the sum of net boolevafiproperty, plant, and equipment, net book valleased property under cap
leases, restricted cash, note receivable, andawdt Vmlue of intangible assets, based on physicaltion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
are as follows:

2014 2013
United State! $ 12,785,11 $ 11,620,59
Canade 350,31¢ 1,751,59!
Total $ 13,135,43 $ 13,372,18

20. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data (in thousand, except per share data)

Quarters ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2014 2014 2014 2014
Product revenu $ 3,16z $ 12,57¢ $ 12,59t $ 12,16¢
Service revenu 2,06¢ 4,41 6,91¢ 8,41(
Research and development contract reve 34¢ 32¢ 371 874
Net (loss) income attributable to commr
shareholder (75,909 3,82¢ (9,377) (7,189
(Loss) income per shar
Basic and Dilutec (0.5%) 0.0z (0.06) (0.09
Quarters ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2013 2013 2013 2013
Product revenu $ 467 $ 5581 % 2,53t $ 5,65¢
Service revenu 1,37 1,54¢ 1,63( 2,107
Research and development contract reve 40C 36¢ 462 267
Net loss attributable to common shareholt (8,576 (9,339 (15,949 (28,929
Loss per share
Basic and Dilutec (0.19¢ (0.1 (0.19 (0.2
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EXHIBIT 23.1

The Board of Directors
Plug Power Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeecimcthe registration statements on Form S-8 (883:200912, 333-175907, 333-72734, 333-
90275, and 333-90277) and Form S-3 (Nos. 333-195883-189056 and 333-150382) of Plug Power Inoufreport dated March 17, 2015,
with respect to the consolidated balance shed®sugf Power Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company'§fddecember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, celmepsive loss, stockholders' equity (deficit), aash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2014, whpbrrappears in the December 31, 2014 annual repdform 10-K of Plug Power Inc.

Our report dated March 17, 2015 containexglanatory paragraph that states the scope chgeanent's assessment of internal control
over financial reporting excluded the internal cohbver financial reporting of ReliOn, Inc. ("Réh"), which the Company acquired in April
2014. ReliOn represented 3% of total assets andfi#hal revenue included in the Company's constéid financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2014. Our audit afmateontrol over financial reporting of the Compaaiso excluded an evaluation of the
internal control over financial reporting of ReliOn

/sl KPMG LLP

Albany, New York
March 17, 2015
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Exhibit 31.1
I, Andrew Marsh, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tRIug Power Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatitclosure controls and procedures and preséentai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antilve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2015 by: /sl ANDREW MARSH

Andrew Marsh
Chief Executive Office
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EXHIBIT 31.2
I, Paul B. Middleton certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tRIug Power Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatitclosure controls and procedures and preséentai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antilve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2015 by: /s PAUL B. MIDDLETON

Paul B. Middleton
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ¢Rower Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for tleripd ended December 31, 2014 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (tHeC'$ on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Andrevarish, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §d,3as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanksr@xt of 2002 ("§ 906"), that to my
knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SteesrExchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

This certification is being furnished arat filed, and shall not be incorporated into angwhnents for any other purpose, under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, dBduarities Act of 1933, as amended. A signed maigdf this written statement required by
8§ 906 has been provided to the Company and wilekened by the Company and furnished to the SEE staff upon request.

/sl ANDREW MARSH

Andrew Marsh
Chief Executive Officer
March 17, 201!
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ¢Rower Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for tleripd ended December 31, 2014 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (tleC'$ on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, GeraldMyderson, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, solely pursuant to 18 U.S @350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sasiaxley Act of 2002 ("§ 906"), that to n
knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgesrExchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

This certification is being furnished arat filed, and shall not be incorporated into angwhoents for any other purpose, under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, dBéuarities Act of 1933, as amended. A signed maigdf this written statement required by
8 906 has been provided to the Company and wilekened by the Company and furnished to the SEE staff upon request.

/sl PAUL B. MIDDLETON

Paul B. Middleton
Chief Financial Officer
March 17, 201!




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002



